
  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       Contents            Page No 

(c) Company Information 

(ci) Notice 

(cii) Directors’ Report 

(ciii) Annexures to the Directors’ Report 

(civ) Report on Corporate Governance 

(cv) Business Responsibility statement 

 

 Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Balance sheet 

Statement of Profit & Loss 

Statement of changes in equity 

Cashflow statement 

Notes on Accounts 

14th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Friday, 30th September, 2022 

At 11.00 AM at  

Reg.off: 6-3-790/8, Flat no-1, Bathina 

Apartments, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, 

Telangana 500016  



  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

Company Information 

CIN: U52190TG2008PLC059968 
 

 

Board of Directors                                                                         

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi -Chairman 

-Independent Director 

 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi  

-Managing Director 

 

Mr. Pramod Kasat 
-Independent Director 
 
Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna  
-Independent Director 
 
Mr. Sirisha Chintapalli 
-Independent Director 

 
Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam 
-Whole Time Director 
 
Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi 
-Whole Time Director 
 
Chief Financial officer 
Mr. Venkata Lakshmi Narasimha Sarma Konduri 
 
Company Secretary & Compliance officer  
Mr. Matte Koti Bhaskara Teja 
 
 
 

Registered office:  
#6-3-790/8, Flat no-1,  
Bathina Apartments, Ameerpet,  
Hyderabad, Telangana 500016 
Ph: 040 666566555,  
E-Mail: info@sskl.co.in 
Website: www.sskl.co.in  
 
 
Statutory Auditors 
M/s Sagar & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
6-3-244/5, Sarada Devi Street, Prem Nagar  
Hyderabad– 500 004,  
Telangana, India  
 
Internal Auditors 
M/s. L V N S Sumanth & Associates 
# 5-5-35/162/f5, Soni Complex,  
Prashanth Nagar, Kukatpally,  
Hyderabad, Telangana. 
 
 
Bankers 
State Bank of India 
Canara Bank 
HDFC Bank Ltd 
IDBI Bank Ltd 
 
 

                   
  

mailto:info@sskl.co.in
http://www.sskl.co.in/


  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

COMMITTEES 

 

Audit Committee Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi - Chairperson 

Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna - Member 

Mr. Pramod Kasat - Member  

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi - Member 

 

 

 

Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli - Chairperson 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi - Member 

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam – Member 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 

Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna - Chairperson 

Mr. Pramod Kasat - Member 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi - Member 

Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli - Member 

 

 

 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi - Chairperson 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi - Member  

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam - Member 

 

 

Risk Management Committee Executive Management & IPO Committee 
 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi - Chairperson 

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam - Member 

Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi - Member 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi - Member 

Mr. Venkata Lakshmi Narasimha Sarma Konduri - 

Member 

 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi - Member  

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam - Member 

Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao - Member 

 

 

  



  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

 
NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of the members of Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited will be 
held on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 6-3-790/8, Flat 
No.1, Bathina Apartments, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500016 to transact the following business:  

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2022 along with the Notes thereon and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao (DIN: 02689280) who retires by rotation and 
being eligible offers himself for reappointment. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
By Order of the Board  

For Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited 
 
 

Sd/-  
Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 

Managing Director 
DIN: 01929166 

 
Place: Hyderabad  
Date: 19.09.2022        
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NOTES:  

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND TO VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH A PROXY 
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The Proxy form duly filled in should be deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. All 
alterations/corrections made in the form of Proxy should be initialed by the Member. 
 

2. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report and the attendance slip sent 
herewith duly filled in for attending the meeting. 

 

3. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not more than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. However, a member holding 
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint single 
person as proxy for his entire shareholding and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person 
or shareholder. 
 

4. Information in respect of Director seeking re-appointment as required under the Secretarial Standards on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by ICSI is attached herewith. 

 

5. As per SS-2, complete particulars of the venue of the Meeting through route map has been attached 

herewith the Notice. 

 

6. The ensuing AGM is being proposed to be held at a Shorter Notice, which shall be subject to the approval of 

all the members of the Company in terms of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

7. Explanatory Statement in respect of Special Business as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 

2013 is annexed herewith.  
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Information in respect of Director seeking re-appointment as required under the Secretarial Standards on 

General Meetings issued by ICSI: 

 

 

  

Name of the director Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi 

Date of Appointment including terms 

and conditions of appointment  

Retired by rotation in the AGM held on 31.12.2020 and 

reappointed thereat in accordance with the provisions of Section 

152 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, reappointed as Whole 

Time Director of the Company, for a period of 3 years, effective 

01.04.2021 at a remuneration of Rs.39 lacs per annum for FY 

2021-22 and Rs.89 lacs per annum thereafter. 

Date of first appointment on the Board 01.06.2009 

 

Date of Birth 03.08.1970 (Age: 52 years) 

 

Expertise in Specific Functional areas He has been associated with our Company since 2009. He has 

approximately 12 years of experience in the field of retail 

business. He is responsible for the procurement and marketing 

activities of our Company. He was previously associated with FIS 

Management Services, LLC. 

 

Educational Qualification He holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Nagarjuna 

University and master’s degree in computing from Griffith 

University, Australia. 

Directorships in other Companies  Nil 

Membership / Chairmanships of 

committees of Other Boards (other 

than the Company) 

 

 

Nil 

Details of Remuneration sought to be 

paid and the remuneration last drawn 

by such person 

Proposed remuneration - Rs 89 lacs per annum effective 

01.04.2022. 

Remuneration drawn for FY 2021-22 : Rs. 36 lacs  

Shareholding in the Company as on 

31.03.2022 

He holds 16,16,500 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 

Relationship between Directors inter-

se 

Brother of Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 

Number of Meetings of the Board 

attended during the year 

He has attended 8 Board Meetings during the financial year 

2021-22. 
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Route Map 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

 Dear Shareholders,  

Your Board of Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 14th Annual Report of your Company together 
with Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2022. 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:  

(Rs. In Crores except EPS) 
PARTICULARS FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 

Gross Operating Income 1129.32 677.25 

Increase / (Decrease) of stock (109.34) 1.68 

Profit for the year before Exceptional Item, 

Depreciation & Taxation 

108.11 36.71 

Depreciation and Amortization expense 30.82 29.45 

Profit before Exceptional Item &  Taxation 77.29 7.30 

Exceptional Item 0 0 

Profit before Taxation  77.29 7.30 

Tax Expense 21.33 1.97 

Deferred Tax (1.76) 2.10 

Profit after Taxation 57.69 5.13 

 Earnings Per Equity Share 4.79 0.43 

2. REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE & COMPANY’S STATE OF AFFAIRS: 

Your company has staged a record comeback post Covid 19, reporting a turnover of Rs.1129. 32 Crores for the FY 

2021-22 when compared to Rs.677.25 Crores for the FY 2020-21. Thus registering a growth of  66.75 % year on 

year basis.  The Profit Before Tax (PBT) for the FY 2021-22 at Rs.77.29 was a phenomenal increase over the PBT 

for FY 2020-21, which stood at meagre Rs.5.31 Crores. This needs to be appreciated in the backdrop of the fact 

that the first quarter of FY 2021-22 was marred by lockdowns and covid induced restrictions in various parts of 

South India, where your Company has significant operations.  The said growth in terms of topline as well as 

bottomline has bolstered the confidence and has further instilled renewed energy in your management and the 

employees, which will go a long way in helping them achieve better landmarks in the coming years. After 

adjusting for taxes and deferred taxes, the PAT stood at Rs.57.67 Crores for the FY 2021-22 as against Rs. 5.39 

Crores for the FY 2020-21.  
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As you are Sai Silks Kalamandir is one of the largest retailers of ethnic apparel, particularly sarees, in South India 

in terms of revenues and profit after tax in Fiscal 2019, 2020 and 2021. (Source: Technopak Report). Through our 

four store formats, i.e., Kalamandir, VaraMahalakshmi Silks, Mandir and KLM Fashion Mall, we offer our products 

to various segments of the market that include premium ethnic fashion, ethnic fashion for middle income and 

value-fashion, with a variety of products across different price points, thereby catering to customers across all 

market segments. Our formats have a strong offline and online presence. While we commenced our operations 

through our first ‘Kalamandir’ store in 2005 at Hyderabad, Telangana with a store size of 3,213 square feet, we 

have over the years expanded our stores to 46 stores in four South Indian states, i.e., Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, 

Karnataka and Tamil Nadu, with an aggregate area of approximately 550,815 square feet as of March 31, 2022. 

We have expanded our presence in online e-commerce marketplaces and commenced selling our products 

through our own online websites for our four format stores in Fiscal 2021, www.kalamandir.com, 

www.brandmandir.com, www.kanchivml.com and www.klmfashionmall.com as well as through other third-party 

online e-commerce websites which provide an omni-channel network to our customers through our online and 

offline channels. Our website offers a variety of features to attract and assists customers, including virtual assist 

chat box, video call appointment to try our products virtually and a search option to browse through the entire 

catalogue of our sarees. In Fiscal 2022, our website (across all our four format stores) recorded an average of 

9,715 visits per day compared to an average of 3,158 visits per day in Fiscal 2021.  

 

During the FY 2021-22, your Company has opened the following new stores:  

 

Sl. No. Format Location 

1. KLM Fashion Mall Khammam, Telangana 

2. Kalamandir Khammam, Telangana 

3. VaraMahalakshmi Silks Bhimavaram, Andhra Pradesh 

4. KLM Fashion Mall Gajuwaka, Andhra Pradesh 

 

Further, your company has renovated the existing stores in the following manner. 

 

Sl. No. Existing stores  Renovated stores 

1. Kalamandir, A.S.Rao Nagar  
Renovated 
under new 

format  

VaraMahalakshmi Silks (VML), A.S.Rao 

Nagar 

2. KLMFashion Mall, Saroornagar VaraMahalakshmi Silks (VML), 

Saroornagar (2) 

3. Kalamandir, Patny Mandir, Patny 

 

Thus, as of date of this Report, the total stores tally stands (under various formats) as hereunder: 

 

Kalamandir Mandir Varamahalakshmi 

Silks 

KLM Fashion Mall 

10 3 17 18 

 

All the new showrooms have recorded excellent performance, in terms of customer response and sales turnover.  

http://www.kalamandir.com/
http://www.brandmandir.com/
http://www.kanchivml.com/
http://www.klmfashionmall.com/
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3. FUTURE OUTLOOK VIS A VIS COVID -19 

The Financial Year 2021-22 suffered two major jolts, causing far reaching impact on the global economy. First, it 

was COVID-19 and then the Russia – Ukraine war. The beginning of the financial year witnessed unprecedented 

spread of COVID-19 resulting in lockdowns, restrictions on movements across the country and mass fatalities. 

Towards the end of 2nd quarter of the FY 2021-22, while the waves of COVID started to subside steadily and 

normalcy was about to be restored, the Russia – Ukraine war broke out in the 4th quarter of the FY. The said 

events may have peculiar impacts on the global economy. While we are collectively and parallelly combating this 

pandemic, we are also slowly but steadily trying to recover and restore normalcy in our economy and also our 

lives.  

We believe in the axiom “there is light at the end of tunnel”. With this faith embedded in our business 

strategies, we are marching ahead with our tradition of scaling up our business by opening of new showrooms,  

adding novel modes of business and addition of new formats.   

While lockdowns imposed initially impacted our revenues, the demand for our products from online channels 

continued to remain strong and following the easing of lockdowns and resumption of economic activities, our 

operations steadily recovered in Fiscal 2022. 

Due to the impact of COVID-19, we recognized the importance of expanding our sales through online e-commerce 

marketplaces and started selling our products through our own online website in Fiscal 2021, 

www.brandmandir.com, www.kanchivml.com, www.kalamandir.com and www.klmfashionmall.com, as well as 

through other third-party online e-commerce websites. In Fiscal 2021 and 2022, our revenue from operations 

attributable to online sales was ₹ 54.92 million, and ₹ 171.55 million, and accounted for 0.81%, and 1.52%, 

respectively, of our revenue from operations. 

Further, we draw your attention to Note No.49 to the Standalone Financial Statement for more discussion on the 

captioned matter.  

 

Material changes affecting the financial position of the Company 

Save and except the likely impact of Covid 19 (as discussed above) and the events taken up subsequent to the 

close of FY 2021-22, as listed hereunder, there have been no material changes and commitments affecting the 

financial position of the company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.  

 

1. resolved to undertake an IPO of its equity shares and get its shares listed on the Stock Exchanges. The Company 

has filed the DRHP with SEBI and final observations are awaited.    

 

2. resolved to set up an ESOP Plan under the name and style “Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited Share Based Employee 

Benefit Scheme – 2022” 

 

3. sub-division of the nominal value of equity shares from Rs.10 per share to Rs.2 per share. 

 

a) Business Assets Transfer Agreement (“BTA”) 
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Our Company entered into a Business Assets Transfer Agreement (“BTA”) dated April 1, 2022 with Sai 

Retail India Limited, (SRIL ) pursuant to which, inter alia, SRIL decided to discontinue its apparel business 

and sold its business assets relating to its apparel business, including the inventory to our Company, on 

an arms-length basis. In terms of the BTA, SRIL has agreed to certain non-compete provisions restricting 

it from undertaking a business substantially similar to, or competing with, the business of our Company, 

and has transferred to our Company all the current and fixed assets for its apparel business including, 

lease improvements, furnitures, rent deposits, inventory and employees’ salary advances for a 

consideration that was based on the prevailing market price, and aggregated to ₹ 2,129.06 million. 

Further, our Company has also absorbed employees of SRIL to the extent they were responsible for 

purchase and other operations of SRIL’s apparel business, and on terms of service no less favourable than 

those which such employees enjoyed immediately prior to the March 31 2022, the cut-off date as 

envisaged under the BTA. 

 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
 

We do not propose any amount to be transferred to the Reserves for the current Financial Year. 

 

5. NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 

There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company during the under review and the company 

continues to carry on its existing business operations.  

6. DIVIDEND: 
 

As discussed elsewhere in this Report, your Company has been constantly expanding its operations and reach by 

opening new outlets under various brand names and formats. Further, as discussed elsewhere in this Report the 

Company is also proposing to undertake an IPO of its equity shares.  In view of the said proposals having a long 

term bearing on the funds flow of the Company, the Board of Directors felt it prudent not to recommend any 

dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

Your company has formulated a Dividend distribution policy, with an objective to provide the dividend 

distribution framework to the stakeholders of the company. The Policy sets out various financial, internal and 

external factors, which shall be considered by the board in determining the dividend pay-out. The policy is 

available on the website of the company i.e., https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Dividend-

Distribution-Policy-SSKL.pdf  

 

7. SHARE CAPITAL: 
 

The Share Capital of the Company as on 31.03.2022 stands as follows: 

Sl. No. Particulars  (Amt. in Rs.) 

1. Authorised Capital:  

4,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each        

        

          42,00,00,000/- 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Dividend-Distribution-Policy-SSKL.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Dividend-Distribution-Policy-SSKL.pdf
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During the year under review, there was no change in the share capital of the company. However, subsequent to 

the closure of the financial year, the following changes have occurred. 

 

 Sub-division of the nominal value of equity shares from Rs.10 per share to Rs.2 per share 

 Pursuant to the resolution passed by the board at its meeting held on 03rd May, 2022 and the 

 shareholders in their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 18th May, 2022 the company has split face 

 value of its equity shares Rs. 10 /- into Rs. 2 /-each per equity share. Accordingly, the authorized share 

 capital of the company stands changed from Rs. 42,00,00,000 comprising 4,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 

 10/- each to Rs. 42,00,00,000 comprising of 21,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 /-each. 

 Allotment of shares to SSKL Employees trust.  

 The Company has issued and allotted 60,16,145 equity shares of face value Rs.2 /- each at a price of Rs.22 

 /- (Including a premium of Rs.20 /-) on 09th June, 2022 to SSKL Employees trust. 

 

Taking into consideration, the aforesaid sub-division and allotment of shares to the Trust, the paid up share 

capital of the company stands at Rs.25,26,78,170 comprising of 12,63,39,085 equity shares face value Rs. 2/- each. 

8. ESOP  
 

Our Company, pursuant to the resolutions passed by our Board of Directors on May 28, 2022, and our 

Shareholders on June 4, 2022, adopted the ESOP Scheme. A Trust under the name and style “SSKL Employees 

Trust” has been formed in this regard. The Company under the ESOP Scheme may grant an aggregate number of 

up to 6,016,145 employee stock options, in one or more tranches. Upon exercise and payment of the exercise 

price, the option holder will be entitled to be allotted one Equity Share per employee stock option. The purpose of 

the ESOP Scheme is, among other things, to: (a) motivate the employees to contribute to the growth and 

profitability of our Company; (b) achieve sustained growth and the creation of Shareholder value by aligning the 

interests of the employees with the long-term interests of our Company; and (c) incentivize the senior and critical 

talents in line with corporate growth and creation of Shareholders’ value. There are no options granted pursuant 

to the ESOP Scheme as of the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

9. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 

During the FY 2021-22, the following changes took place in the offices of directors / Key Managerial Personnel of 

the company:  

1. Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi (Managing Director), Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam (Whole Time 
Director) and  Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi (Whole Time Director) were reappointed to 
their respective offices for a period of 3 years effective 01.04.2021. 

 
2. Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam (DIN: 02428313) retired by rotation in the previous AGM held on 

30.11.2021 and was reappointed thereat.  

2. Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up capital: 

2,40,64,588 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 

     

         24,06,45,880/- 

Total Equity Capital (As at 31st March, 2022)          24,06,45,880/- 
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3. Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi was appointed to the office of Non-executive Independent Director 

and also as the Chairman of the Company effective 18.02.2022. 
 

4. Mr. Pramod Kasat was appointed to the office of Non-executive Independent Director of the Company 
effective 18.02.2022. 

 
5. Mr. Venkata Lakshmi Narasimha Sarma Konduri was appointed to the office of Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO), a KMP of the company effective 01st March, 2022 in place of Mr. Oruganti Ramakrishna, who 
resigned as such effective 01st March, 2022. 

 

 
Apart from the aforesaid, there was no change in the office of Director / KMPs of the Company during the FY 

2021-22. 

 

Further, in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka 

Durgarao (DIN: 02689280), Whole time Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

 

Subsequent to the close of FY 2021-22 and as on the date of this report, the following changes took place in the 

offices of directors of the company: 

1. Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna was appointed to the office of Non-Executive Independent 
Director effective 04th June, 2022  

 
2. Mr. Naveen Nandigam and Mr. laxmi Nivas Jaju resigned from their respective office of independent 

director effective 03.05.2022. 
 

10. BOARD MEETINGS:  
 

The Board met 8 times during the Financial Year 2021-22 on the following dates: 

 

12.04.2021, 05.07.2021 08.07.2021, 03.09.2021, 16.11.2021, 25.11.2021 18.02.2022 and 10.03.2022 

The intervening gap between any two consecutive Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The names of members of the Board and their attendance at the Board Meetings are as under: 

 

Name of the Director Number of Meetings attended/ Total Meetings 
held during the F.Y. 2021-22 
 

Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 8/8 

Annam  Kalyana Srinivas 8/8 

D K DurgaRao Chalavadi 8/8 

Naveen Nandigam 7/8 

Laxminivas Jaju 6/8 

Sirisha Chinthapalli 7/8 

Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi 0/1 
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Pramod Kasat 0/1 

 

Notes: 

 Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi and Mr. Pramod Kasat were appointed on the Board effective 18.02.2022. 

 Mr. Naveen Nandigam and Mr. laxmi Nivas Jaju resigned from the Board effective 03.05.2022. 

   

11. COMMITTEES COMPOSITION & MEETINGS: 
 

COMMITTEES’ COMPOSITION 

 

As on date of this Report, (subsequent upon reconstitution, wherever applicable), the composition of 

various Committees stands as hereunder:  

 

Name of the Committee Members 
Audit Committee - Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi - Chairman 

- Mr. Pramod Kasat - Member 

- Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna- Member 

- Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi- Member 
Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 

- Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna – Chairman 

- Mr. Pramod Kasat - Member 

- Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi – Member 

- Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli - Member 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee - Mr. Sirisha Chintapalli – Chairman 

- Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam - Member 

- Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi - Member 
Executive Management & IPO Committee - Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi- Chairman 

- Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi - Member 

- Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam - Member 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee 

- Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi - Chairman 

- Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi - Member 

- Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam - Member 
Risk Management Committee - Mr. NagakanakaDurga Prasad Chalavadi- Chairman 

- Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi - Member 

- Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam – Member 

- Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi – Member 

- Venkata Lakshmi Narasimha Sarma Konduri– Member 
 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

 
A. Audit Committee: 

 

The Committee met 4 times during the financial year under review i.e., on 05.07.2021, 03.09.2021, 25.11.2021 

& 10.03.2022 

 

Attendance: 
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Name of the Member Number of Meetings attended/ Total Meetings held 
during the F.Y. 2021-22 

Mr. Naveen Nandigam– Chairman 3/4 

Mr. LaxminivasJaju 3/4 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 4/4 

 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

The Committee met 4 times during the financial year under review i.e., on 12.04.2021, 03.09.2021, 18.02.2022 

& 10.03.2022 

 

Attendance: 

 

Name of the Member Number of Meetings attended/ Total Meetings held 
during the F.Y. 2021-22 
 

Mr. Naveen Nandigam– Chairman 3/4 
Mr. Laxminivas Jaju 4/4 

Mrs. Sirisha Chinthapalli 4/4 

 

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee  

 

 The Committee met 2 times during the financial year under review i.e., on 25.11.2021 & 18.02.2022 

 

Attendance  

 

 

D. Executive Management & IPO Committee 

 

The Committee met 1 time during the financial year under review i.e., on 05.07.2021 

 

Attendance: 

 

Name of the Member Number of Meetings attended/ Total Meetings held 
during the F.Y. 2021-22 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi– Chairman 1/1 
Mr.DurgaRaoDoodeswara Kanaka Chalavadi 1/1 

Mr. Annam Kalyana Srinivas 1/1 

 

E. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

  

The Committee met 2 times during the financial year under review i.e., on 12.04.2021 & 25.11.2021 

Name of the Member Number of Meetings attended/ Total Meetings 
held during the F.Y. 2021-22 

Mr. Laxminivas Jaju– Chairman 1/2 
Mr. Naveen Nandigam 1/2 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 2/2 
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Attendance: 

 

Name of the Member Number of Meetings attended/ Total Meetings held 
during the F.Y. 2021-22 

Mr. Naveen Nandigam– Chairman 2/2 
Mr. Laxminivas Jaju 1/2 

Mr. NagakanakaDurga Prasad Chalavadi 2/2 

 

 

12. BOARD EVALUATION, NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 
 

Based on the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Company has in place 

a Policy for performance evaluation of the Board and the committees as a whole and that of the Individual 

Directors, which include criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors, 

structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board. 

 

Besides, the Company also surveys on the best practices prevalent in the Industry with respect to evaluation of 

the performance of the Board and its members. The Company also avails services of professionals seeking their 

suggestions on the said matter. Based on the inputs received from the aforesaid sources and in accordance with 

the Policy of the Company, evaluation process is undertaken at appropriate time(s). 

 

The following policies of the Company are attached herewith and marked as Annexure VII, VIII, respectively: 

 
a) Policy on appointment of Directors & Board Diversity 
b) Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and the Senior Management employees 
 

The Board evaluated the performance of the managing Director / Whole Time Directors at the time of their 

reappointments.   

 

13. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 

The Company has received respective declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet 

the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

In compliance with schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 the Independent Directors held their meeting on 

12.04.2021 without the presence of non-independent directors and members of the management, inter alia, to 

discuss the following: 

 
o Noting the report of performance evaluation of the Board from the Chairman of the Board; 
o Review of the performance of non-independent directors and the Board; 
o Review of the performance of the Chairman of the Company; 

o Assessment of the quality and quantity and timeliness of flow of information to the Board;  
 

All the Independent Directors were present at the aforesaid meeting. 

14. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (c) and Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 

Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that:  

 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 

(b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the 

end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

 

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities; 

 

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

 

(e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and such internal financial 

controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

 

(f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

15. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

As stated elsewhere, your Company proposes to undertake an IPO of its equity shares and get its shares listed on 

the Stock Exchanges. In view of the said, it has complied with the provisions of SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015, to 

the extent feasible and applicable.  Pursuant to the said, the following annexures form part of this Report and are 

attached herewith:  

 

 A Report on the Management Discussion and Analysis – Annexure – V 

 A Report on Corporate Governance for the year 2021-22 – Annexure – VI 

 

A certificate of the Managing Director and CFO of the Company in terms of Listing Regulations, inter alia, 

confirming the correctness of the financial statements and cash flow statements, etc., forms part of the Annual 

Report.  

 

16. AUDITORS: 

a) STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 

The Shareholders in their meeting held on 30th November, 2021 (13th AGM) appointed M/s. Sagar & Associates, 

Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad as statutory auditors of the company to hold office till the conclusion of 18th 

Annual General Meeting i.e., for a period of 5 years. The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not 

disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. 

 

Auditors observation(s) 

 



  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

The Notes on Financial Statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any 

further comments. The Auditors Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or 

disclaimer. 

 

b) INTERNAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, your 
Company has appointed LVNS Sumanth& Associates as the Internal Auditor of the Company. 

 

c) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a copy of Secretarial Audit for the FY ended 31st March, 2022 

is attached herewith and marked as Annexure IV hereto. 

 

Observation(s): 

With reference to the reported delay in filing of Forms, we would like to mention that it was purely procedural 

without any malafide intention on the part of any one. We would ensure that such delays do not reoccur in future 

instances.  

 

d) COST RECORDS: 
 

It is hereby confirmed that the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government 

under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence accounts and records related thereto are not required 

to be made or maintained. 

 

17.  FIXED DEPOSITS: 
 

The Company has neither accepted nor repaid any deposits during the financial year ended on 31.03.2022. 

Further, there were no outstanding deposits as at the beginning of the FY or at any time during the financial year 

2022. Hence, no details are required to be provided pursuant to Rule 8 (5) (v) & (vi) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 

 

Further, the Company has not borrowed any unsecured loans from its Directors during the FY ended 31st March, 

2022 and there were no amounts (unsecured loans ) outstanding  as on 31st March, 2022.  

 

18. SUBSIDIARIES / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Joint venture or Associate Company as on the closure of the 

financial year under reporting and even as on the date. 
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19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
 

Your Board of Directors and the CSR committee feel proud to mention that we have been undertaking CSR 

activities as a part and parcel of our life, whether mandated by law or otherwise . It has been a volunteer endeavor 

on our part to do our bit to the society we live in. As far as FY 2021-22 is concerned your company has undertaken 

the activities in the areas of Child education, Scholarships, food to the poor people and welfare of challenged 

people and health care either its own or in association with KALAMANDIR FOUNDATION.  

 

The Board has, pursuant to the recommendation of the CSR committee, with a vision to actively contribute to the 

social and economic development of the communities in which your company operates and in doing so, build a 

better, sustainable way of life for the weaker sections of the society  adopted a CSR policy. 

 

The Annual Report on CSR activities as per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is 

annexed herewith as ‘Annexure - III to this report. The CSR Policy is posted on the website of the Company and 

the web link is https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CSR-Policy.pdf  

 

The CSR Committee, constituted by the Board, is in place and is actively involved in identifying areas as per the 

contemporary needs of the society.  While identifying such areas, it ensures that the same are commensurate with 

the Company’s Policy in general. Further, the Committee also supervises the progress of CSR activities of the 

Company.  

 

The composition of the CSR Committee has been already disclosed elsewhere in this Report.  

 

Simultaneously KALAMANDIR FOUNDATION, the CSR arm of your Company is also actively involved in furthering 

the cause of CSR for your Company.  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company was required to spend an 

amount of Rs.79.32 lakhs towards CSR Activities.  However, your Company’s total expenditure towards CSR 

aggregated to Rs.83.53 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022. Out of the said amount of Rs.83.53 Lakhs, your 

Company spent  Rs. 81.84 Lakhs through Kalamandir Foundation and Rs. 1.68 lakhs was spent by the Company on 

its own.  

 

Further,  in addition to the aforesaid, your Company, out of  Rs. 76.17 Lakhs earmarked for the ongoing project 

(taken up during FY 2020-21) has spent an amount of Rs.50 lacs during the FY 2021-22. The balance amount of 

26.17 lakhs will be spent as per the requirements of the ongoing project upon recommendation by the CSR 

committee. 

 

 

20. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 

The details regarding Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as 

required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

are given in the Annexure - I and forms part of this report. 

 

21. ANNUAL RETURN: 
 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CSR-Policy.pdf
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In accordance with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013, a copy of Annual Return in the prescribed 

format i.e., Form MGT-7 along with attachments is placed on the website  of the Company, https://sskl.co.in/wp-

content/uploads/2022/07/Annual-Return-2021-22.pdf 

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 

The Company has not entered into any related party transactions which are not at arm’s length basis during the 

FY ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

However, all the related party transactions entered into during the financial year 2021-22 were at arm’s length 

basis and were in the ordinary course of business. The details of related party transactions which were entered 

into during the previous year / current year are provided at Note No.45 forming part of the notes to financial 

statements.  

 

As per clause h of Section 134 (3) of the Companies act, 2013, the particulars of related party transactions, (which 

were entered into pursuant to existing contracts as well as fresh contracts) as referred to in Section 188 (1) of the 

Companies act, 2013 have been disclosed in Form No. AOC – 2 which is appended as Annexure - II to this Report. 

 

Further company has a policy on Related Party Transactions which is available on the website of the company at 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-On-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf  

 

23. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 
During the year under review, the Company has not made any investment or given any guarantee or provided any 

security as contemplated under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

24.  INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 
 

The Company has laid down internal financial controls through Entity level controls inter-alia to ensure orderly 

and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to Company’s policies and procedures, accuracy and 

completeness of accounting records and timely preparation and reporting of reliable financial 

statements/information, safe guarding of assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors. 

 

The evaluation of these internal financial controls was done through the internal audit process, established within 

the Company and also through appointing professional firm to carry out such tests by way of systematic internal 

audit program. Based on the review of the reported evaluations, the directors confirm that, for the preparation of 

financial accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022 the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed 

and the internal financial controls are generally found to be adequate and were operating effectively and that no 

material weakness were noticed.  

 

25. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
 

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy, aimed at a) embed the management of risk as an integral 

part of our business processes; b) establish an effective system of risk identification, analysis, evaluation and 

treatment within all areas and all levels of the Company; c) avoid exposure to significant financial loss; d) 

contribute to the achievement of the Company's objectives; and e) assess the benefits and costs of implementation 

of available options and controls to manage risk.  

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Annual-Return-2021-22.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Annual-Return-2021-22.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-On-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
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Further Risk management policy is also available on the company website at https://sskl.co.in/wp-

content/uploads/2022/07/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf. 

 

26. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
 

The company has in place a Vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy in terms of section 177(9) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 which enables employees, officers and stakeholders to freely convey their concerns about illegal or 

unethical practices. No person has been denied access to the chairman of the Audit Committee to lodge their 

grievances. The Vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy is also available on the company’s  website 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.pdf  

 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi, Independent Director of the Company is the Head of the Vigil Mechanism; all 

the employees have direct access to report their concerns and complaints. During the year under the review no 

complaint has been received.   

 

The details of the vigil mechanism are provided in the Annexure - VII to this Report. 

 

27. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE: 
 

Your Company strongly supports the rights of all its employees to work in a harassment – free environment. The 

Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace as 

per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The policy aims to provide protection to Employees at the workplace and 

prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the 

objective of providing a safe working environment, where Employees feel secure. The Company has also 

constituted an Internal Complaints Committee, known as Anti Sexual Harassment Committee to address the 

concerns and complaints of sexual harassment and to recommend appropriate action. 

 

The composition of said committee may be referred at Report on Corporate Governance attached herewith.  

 

We further confirm that during the year under review, there were no cases or complaints filed pursuant to the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

28. SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
 

There are no orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern status of your 

Company and its future operations. Further, it is confirmed that there were no instances of fraud to be reported 

by the Auditors vide their Report for the FY 2021-22.  

 

29. INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 & STATUS THEREOF  
 

During the year under review, neither any application was made nor any proceeding stands pending under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as on 31st March, 2022. 

 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.pdf
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Further, during the year under review, the Company has not proposed or entered into any One Time Settlement 

with Bank / Financial Institution and hence question of providing details of difference between amount of the 

valuation done at the time of One Time Settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or 

Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof, does not arise. 

 

30. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND 
VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH 
REASONS THEREOF 

 

Not applicable (As there were no instances of one-time settlement with the Banks or financial institutions during 

the year under review)  

 

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:  
 

The Company has complied with the with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) 

issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:  
Your Board members extend their hearty appreciation for the sustained co-operation and support by the Banks, 

Government authorities, Business Partners, Weavers and Suppliers, Customers and other Stakeholders and more 

importantly the employees of the Company, who have provided their unflinching support during the tough times 

of the Company.  

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 

Managing Director Whole time Director 
DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 

                      
                                               

 
Place: Hyderabad  

Date: 19.09.2022 

 



  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

Annexure - I 

 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS/ OUTGO: 

 The particulars as prescribed under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

 (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 

A.              Conservation of Energy: NA  
 

i.       the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;  
ii.       the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;  
iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipment;  

 
B. Technology Absorption: NA 

i. The efforts made towards technology absorption;  

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution;  

iii.    In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)-  

 the details of technology imported; the year of import;  
 whether the technology been fully absorbed;  
 if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and  
 the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.  

 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year: 2021-22 (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Foreign Exchange Earned: Nil  
Foreign Exchange Outgo:  Nil  
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 

Managing Director Whole time Director 
DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 

                      
                                               

 
Place: Hyderabad  

Date: 19.09.2022 
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Annexure – II 
 

Form No. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
 Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 
 parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ 
 length transactions under third proviso thereto 
 
 1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
 
 The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction which is not at arm’s length basis 
 during the year under review. 
 
 2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
 

Name(s) of the 
related party and 
nature of 
relationship 

 Nature of 
contracts/arr
angements/tr
ansactions: 
Sales 
 

 Duration of 
the contracts 
/arrangeme
nts/transacti
ons: 
Ordinary 
Course of 
business 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

 Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any 

Amount 
paid as 
advances
, if any 

Sai Retail India Ltd  
 
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having significant 
influence)  
 
(Refer Note 1) 

Sale / 
Purchases 
 
 
 
 

5 years  
 
 

Purchase of 
textiles, Sarees etc., 
in the ordinary 
Course of Business, 
up to a maximum 
value of Rs.1100 
Crores during any 
FY. Other terms as 
per Agreement.  

27.03.2017 Nil 

Sai Retail India Ltd  
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having significant 
influence)  
 

Business 
Assets 
Transfer 
Agreement 
(BTA) 

One time 
Agreement  

Refer Note 2 10.03.2022 Nil 

Sai Retail India Ltd 
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having significant 
influence) 

Rent (income) 5 years  Lease Rentals  
1. Kanchi – Rs. 
10,000 per month 

01.04.2017 Nil 

Sai Retail India Ltd  
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having significant 
influence) 

Sub Lease  
(Expenses) 

6 years Sub lease of 
premises, 
(Vijayawada @ Rs. 
92,000 per month, 
(to be enhanced in 
terms of 
Agreement)  

18.06.2018 Nil 
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Sai Retail India 
Ltd  
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having 
significant 
influence) 

Sub  lease 
(Expenses) 

5 years Sub lease of 
premises, 
 
(Kismatpur  @ Rs. 
1,50,000 per 
month) from 1st 
July 2020, (to be 
enhanced in terms 
of Agreement) 

25.05.2020 9,00,000 

SSS Marketing  
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having 
significant 
influence) 

Commission  5 years with 
effect from 
01.04.2019 

2% on net sales or 
1,50,000 per 
month - whichever 
is higher 

14.03.2019 
 

12,00,000 

Sumaja Creations 
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having significant 
influence) 

 
Advertisement  

5 years with 
effect from 
01.04.2019 

Advertisement and 
publicity services 
as per the 
agreement  

14.03.2019 
 

Nil 

Naga Kanaka 
Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 
 
(Managing 
Director) 

Rent  4 years 
 
 
 
 
 
4 years 
 
 
 
4 years 
 
 
 
4 years 
 
 
 
4 years 
 
 
 
 
4 years 
 
 
4 years 
 
 

Lease rentals for 
Office premises  
1. Flat No:1 – Rs. 
1,00,000 from 
February 2022  
 
2. Flat No:3 – Rs. 
50,000 from 
February 2022 
 
3. Flat no:4 – 
Rs.50,000 from 
February 2022 
 
4. Flat no:8 – 
Rs.50,000 from 
February 2022 
 
5. Flat no:11 – 
Rs.50,000 from 
March 2022 
 
6. Flat no:16 – 
Rs.50,000 from 
February 2022 
 
7.6-3-841/E/1  
Rs. 1,00,000 from 
February 2022 

 
 
25.11.2021 
 
 
 
 
25.11.2021 
 
 
 
25.11.2021 
 
 
25.11.2021 
 
 
 
25.11.2021 
 
 
 
25.11.2021 
 
 
 
25.11.2021 
 
 

 
11,00,000 

Ch. Jhansi Rani 
(Relative of 
Directors) 

Rent 5 years Lease rentals for 
Office premises 
 
Flat No:14 – Rs. 
50,000 per month 

25.11.2021 2,40,000 
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Varamahalakshmi 
Holdings (P) Ltd. 
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having 
significant 
influence) 

Rent  5 years  Lease rentals for 
Office premises 
1. Vizag – Rs. 
60,000 per month 
 
2. Rajahmundry– 
Rs. 25,000 per 
month 

27-03-2017 
& 
10.03.2022 
(renewal) 

Nil  

Soul of Pluto 
Tech LLP 
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having 
significant 
influence) 

Software & 
software 
maintenance 
services 

3 years  Software licensing 
& servicing 
agreement 
Rs.18.5 lacs per 
month subject to 
maximum of 30 
lacs per month. 

 
04.09.2020 
 

Nil 

Soul of Pluto 
Tech LLP 
(Enterprise over 
which Directors 
having 
significant 
influence) 

Rent (income) 5 years  Lease rentals for 
Office premises 
Rs.1,00,000 per 
month, (to be 
enhanced in terms 
of Agreement) 
 

01.04.2019 
 

6,00,000 

 

 Notes :   

1. The agreement expired on on the closing hours of March 31, 2022 and not renewed further.  

2. Business Assets Transfer Agreement (“BTA”) dated April 1, 2022 was entered with Sai Retail India Limited, 

(SRIL ) pursuant to which, inter alia, SRIL decided to discontinue its apparel business and sold its business assets 

relating to its apparel business, including the inventory to our Company, on an arms-length basis. In terms of the 

BTA, SRIL has agreed to certain non-compete provisions restricting it from undertaking a business substantially 

similar to, or competing with, the business of our Company, and has transferred to our Company all the current 

and fixed assets for its apparel business including, lease improvements, furnitures, rent deposits, inventory and 

employees’ salary advances for a consideration that was based on the prevailing market price, and aggregated to ₹ 

2,129.06 million. Further, our Company has also absorbed employees of SRIL to the extent they were responsible 

for purchase and other operations of SRIL’s apparel business, and on terms of service no less favourable than 

those which such employees enjoyed immediately prior to the March 31 2022, the cut-off date as envisaged under 

the BTA. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 

M0061naging Director Whole time Director 
DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 

                      
                                               

 
Place: Hyderabad  

Date: 19.09.2022 
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Annexure – III 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

 

  This CSR Report pertains to the period commencing on 01st April, 2021 and ending on 31st March, 2022 

 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes undertaken and a 

reference to the CSR policy and projects /programmes: 

 

 A. CSR Policy: 

 

 CSR Vision Statement & Objective 

  

 CSR Vision: 

 

 In alignment with its vision, as a socially responsible corporate citizen, Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited (SSKL) will 

 continue to enhance value creation in the society and community in which it operates. Through its conduct, 

 services, and CSR initiatives it will strive to promote sustained growth in the surrounding environs.  

  

 

 Objective: 

 

i. To operate its business in a sustainable manner respecting the society & the environment, while recognizing 

the interests of all its stakeholders. 

ii. To also take up directly or indirectly programs that will benefit the communities in and around its 

malls/stores/shopping complexes which will over a period of time enhance the quality of life and economic 

well-being of the local residents. 

iii. Through its regular services and additionally through its CSR initiatives, SSKL will generate community 

goodwill and create a positive image of SSKL as a socially responsible corporate. 

 

 Resources: 

 

1. 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years. 

2. Any income arising therefrom. 

3. Surplus arising out of CSR activities 

 

 Identification of CSR works: 

 

 The applications, representations received from community representatives, NGO’s, Panchayat or Govt. agencies 

 requesting assistance for a Work to be taken up or SSKL on its own or through its Trust – ‘Kalamandir Foundation’ 

 identifying a work for execution, will be listed. 

 

 Areas Identified for CSR activities: 

 

 The areas where the Company intends to focus its CSR activity are listed below. This is not an exclusive list and 

 the Company may include other activities, based on the areas identified and felt need for improvement by the CSR 

 Committee : 
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1. Support the economically backward and children in the need of health and education; 
2. Support the humanity during the natural calamities, donation of clothes to flood relief camps; 
3. Collaborate in the initiatives of other NGOs for the cause of fostering the needy children health care; 
4. Support the initiatives that would help the public at large in understanding the health hazards; 
5. Conduct the workshops and create awareness about conservation of natural resources; 
6. Promote the activities, which would support the welfare and well-being of the Weavers Community; 
7. Eradicating extreme hunger and poverty; 
8. Infrastructure Development (village roads, culverts, bus shelters, solar lighting etc); 
9. Ensuring environmental sustainability; 
10. Drinking water / Sanitation; 
11. Healthcare; 
12. Community Development; 
13. Education and vocational training; 
14. Skill Development; 
15. Child care and nutrition. 

 

 SSKL will engage in the above activities independently or in such manner that it will complement the work being 

 done by local authorities where ever necessary in such a manner that, the work executed by SSKL or through its 

 ‘Kalamandir Foundation’ will offer a multi fold benefit to the community. 

 

 Implementation Process: 

 

 A CSR Cell has been formed at Malls/ Stores/ Shopping Complexes and at Corporate and Registered Office to 

 identify various projects / Programmes suitable as per the policy of the Company. These identified projects / 

 Programmes are scrutinized by the CSR Committee and selected for implementation. 

 

 Monitoring: 

 

 The coordinators periodically inspect & report the progress of work commissioned every quarter and submit a 

 report to CSR Committee.  

 

2.  Composition of the CSR Committee: 

 

 Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi, Chairperson 

 Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi, Member  

 Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam, Member 

 

3. The web-link where composition of CSR Committee, CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the board 
are disclosed on the website of the Company: 

weblink: https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CSR-Policy.pdf  

4. Details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable – (attach report): Not 
applicable 

 

5. Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set-off for the financial year, 
if any: Not applicable 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CSR-Policy.pdf
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6. Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5) of the Act : Rs. 39,66,13,177  
 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Act                                                              
: Rs. 79,32,264 

 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years                                        

: Nil 

   (c) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any    : Nil 
(d) Total CSR Obligation for the financial year ( 7a +7b -7c)         : Rs. 79,32,264 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2021-22: 
 

Total amount 
spent for the 
Financial Year 
(in Rupees) 

Amount unspent (in Rupees) 
 

 

Total amount transferred to 
unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135 (6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under schedule vii as per the second 
provision of Section 135 (5) 

Amount Date of 
Transfer 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount Date of 
Transfer 

83,53,217 
 

-  - - - 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial year 2021-22: NIL 
 

S 
No 

Name of  
the Project 

Item 
from 
the List 
of  
Activiti
es  in 
Schedu
le  vii to 
the Act 

Local 
Area 
(Yes/
No) 

Location of the 
Project 

Project 
Duratio
n 
 

Amount 
allocated 
for the 
Project 

Amount 
spent in 
the 
current 
financia
l year 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
transferre
d to 
unspent 
CSR 
Account 
for the 
Project 

Mode of 
Impleme
ntation – 
Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of 
Impleme
ntation 
Through 
Impleme
nting 
agency 

State District Na

me 

CSR 
Reg 
No. 

1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

 

 (c)Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the FY 2021-22:  
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Sl. 
N
o 

Name of 
the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 
in 
schedule 
VII to the 
Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of the 
project 

Amount 
spent for 
the 
project 
(in Rs.). 

Mode 
of 
imple
ment
ati 
on - 
Direct 
(Yes/
No). 

Mode of 
implementation - 
Through 
implementing 
agency. 

    State District   Name CSR 
registrati
on 
number. 

1 Promoting 
Education 

Child 
Education 

Yes Andhr
a 
Prade
sh 

Vijayawa
da 

50,00,000 No Kalama
ndir 
Founda
tion 

CSR00009
299 

2 Promoting 
Education 

Child 
Education 

Yes Telan
agana 

Hyderaba
d 

24,86,967 No Kalama
ndir 
Founda
tion 

CSR00009
299 

3 Health, 
hygiene and 
safe drinking 
water 

Health and 
Hygiene 

Yes Telan
gana 

Hyderaba
d 

6,82,304 No Kalama
ndir 
Founda
tion 

CSR00009
299 

4 Poverty, 
Hunger, 
Malnutriti on 

Poverty, 
Hunger, 
Malnutri 
tion 

Yes Telan
gana 

Hyderaba
d 

15,229 No Kalama
ndir 
Founda
tion 

CSR00009
299 

5 Poverty, 
Hunger, 
Malnutriti on 

Poverty, 
Hunger, 
Malnutri 
tion 

Yes Telan
gana 

Hyderaba
d 

1,68,717 Yes N.A. N.A. 

 
            (d) Amount spent in administrative overheads: Nil 

            (e) Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable:  Not applicable 

            (f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 83,53,217 

            (g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. 4,20,953 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:  
 

S 
No 

Preceding 
Financial 
year 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account 
number 
under Section 
135(6) (in 

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
year 

Amount   transferred   to   any   fund   
specified under Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any. 

Amount 
remaining   to be    
spent    in 
succeeding 
financial years. (in 
Rs.) 
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Rs.) 

1 FY 2020-21 76,16,595 50,00,000 
Nil Nil Nil 26,16,595 

2 FY 2019-20 N.A. N.A. 
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.  

3 FY 2018-19 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

        

 
              (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year 2020-21: 

50,00,000 

S 
No 

Project 
ID. 

Name of  
the Project 

Financial 
Year         in 
which the 
project   was 
commenced 

Project 
duration 

Total 
amount 
allocated 
for      the 
project 
(in Rs.)  

Amount 
spent  on  
the project      
in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs.) 

Cumulative 
amount   
spent at  
the  end  of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year. (in 
Rs.) 

Status  of  the 
project -
Completed 
/Ongoing. 

1. - 

Promoting 
Education 
S K P V V 

Hindu High 

School  

FY 2020-21 

 
 

-  

76,16,595 50,00,000 50,00,000 Ongoing  

 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:  Not applicable 

 

11. Specify the reason (s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as 
per Section. 135(5) : N.A. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
 

Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 
Managing Director Whole time Director 

DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 
                

Sd/- 
Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi 

Chairman CSR Committee 
(DIN: 00008241) 

 
Place: Hyderabad           
Date:  19.09.2022 
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Annexure-IV 
 

   

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 
The Members, 
SAI SILKS (KALAMANDIR) LIMITED 
6-3-790/8, Flat No. 1, Bathina Apartments 
Ameerpet, Hyderabad- 500016. 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by SAI SILKS (KALAMANDIR) LIMITED, (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 

statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by SAI 

SILKS (KALAMANDIR) LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, as made 

available to us, according to the provisions of:  

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

 

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

iii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder – Not Applicable 

 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings–Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period. 
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v. Regulations and Guidelines under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) - Not 

applicable  

 

vi. Other laws applicable specifically to the Company 

 

I have been informed that generally applicable laws such as fiscal laws, labour laws and trade related laws etc., 

alone are applicable to the Company and hence there are no other laws applicable specifically to the Company. 

 

I have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

 

i. Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s)– N.A 

(Since the securities (equity shares) of the Company are not listed)  

 

 ii.    Secretarial Standards with regard to Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings  (SS-2) 

issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

 

 There were few instances where the Company filed forms and returns required to be filed with the Registrar of 

Companies with additional fee. 

 

I further report that: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with requisite number of Independent Directors and 

Women Director as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.  The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act. 

 

As per the information provided by the Company, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 

Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent sufficiently in advance as per the confirmation given by 

the management, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

As per the Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were 

unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.  
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I further report that: 

 

 As per the information provided by the management, there are adequate systems and processes in the 

company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

 During the audit period, there were no specific events / actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, 

rules, regulations, etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs. 

 

However, subsequent to the close of FY 2021-22, the Company has taken up the following activities:   

 

 resolved to undertake an IPO of its equity shares and get its shares listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

The Company has filed the DRHP with SEBI and final observations are awaited.    

 

 resolved to set up an ESOP Plan under the name and style “Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited Share 

Based Employee Benefit Scheme – 2022” 

 

 sub-division of the nominal value of equity shares from Rs.10 per share to Rs.2 per share 

 

I, further report that : 

 

The Company had to temporarily / partially suspend its business operations in its stores, during different periods 

of the FY 2021-22, in view of the Covid 19 induced Lockdown / restrictions in the country.  

 

Further, attention is drawn to Notes to Financial Statements, which describes the management assessment of the 

impact of Covid -19 pandemic. 

For Kasat & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

Sd/- 

Anand Kumar C. Kasat 

Proprietor 

M.No. 11175 

            C.P. No: 17420 

         UDIN: F011175D000977987  

 Place: Hyderabad          

 Date:  15th September, 2022 

 

 [This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of 
this report.] 
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Annexure - A 

 

To, 

The Members, 

SAI SILKS (KALAMANDIR) LIMITED 

6-3-790/8, Flat No. 1, Bathina Apartments 
Ameerpet, Hyderabad- 500016 

 
  Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
 

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper 

systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the 

systems are adequate and operate effectively. 

 

2. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,  regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

3. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain  reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done on random basis to ensure 

that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed 

provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 

4. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by 

the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

 

5. I believe that audit evidence and information provided by the Company’s management is adequate and 

appropriate for me to provide a basis for my opinion. 

 

6. Wherever required, I have obtained the management’s representation about the  compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

7. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books and Accounts of the 

Company. 

 

Disclaimer 
 
8. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted  the affairs of the Company. 
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For Kasat & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

Sd/- 

Anand Kumar C. Kasat 

Proprietor 

M.No. 11175 

          C.P. No: 17420 

         UDIN: F011175D000977987  

Place: Hyderabad          

Date:  15th September, 2022 
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Annexure–V 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

  

OVERVIEW OF INDIAN ECONOMY 

 

India GDP and GDP Growth 

 

India is the world's 6th largest economy and expected to be in the top 3 global economies by 2050 

Currently, India ranks sixth in the world in terms of nominal gross domestic product ("GDP") and is the third-

largest economy in the world in terms of purchasing power parity ("PPP"). India is estimated to be among the top 

three global economies in nominal GDP by Fiscal 2050. 

 

India expected to fare better than developed economies and recover to a high growth path in the coming 

years  

 
India's real gross domestic product ("GDP") has sustained an average growth between 6% and 7% since FY 1991. 

India has been the fastest-growing G20 economy since FY 2015, with an annual growth rate hovering around 7%.  

India's economy grew at ~7% in FY 2019. 

 

India's GDP Growth almost Twice as that of the World Economy 

 

Since FY 2005, the Indian economy's growth rate has been twice as that of the world economy and it is expected 

to sustain this growth momentum in the long term. In the wake of COVID-19, India's nominal GDP contracted by 

approximately 3% in FY2021 but expected to bounce back and reach US$ 4,049 Bn by FY 2025. It is also expected 

that the growth trajectory of Indian economy will enable India to be among the top 3 global economies by FY 

2050. 

 

APPAREL INDUSTRY IN INDIA 

 

Retail Market in India 

 

Retail Market in India was valued at US$ 492 Bn in FY 2015 and reached a value of US$ 796 Bn in FY 2020, 

growing at a 10.1% CAGR over this period. Currently, the Retail Market in India was valued at US$ 748 Bn (INR 

56,10,000 Cr) in FY 2021 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 9.5% to reach US$ 1,077 Bn (INR 80,77,500 Cr) by 

FY 2025. 

 

India’s Consumption Funnel in FY (in US$ Bn) 
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Source: Technopak Analysis. 1US$ = INR 75 

 

Retail Size – Overall & across Key Categories 

 

In Fiscal 2020, India’s retail basket was approximately 48.5% of its private consumption and it is expected to 

maintain roughly this share in private consumption for the next five years. The food & grocery (“F&G”) segment 

forms the major share of India’s merchandise retail expenditure (~66%), it has jumped to ~73% amid the 

disruptions caused by COVID-19 in fiscal 2021. While other sectors in retail have contracted by 25-30% during FY 

2021 due to the impact of COVID-19, need based categories like food & grocery and pharma retail have witnessed 

growth. The apparel market in India was estimated at ~US$ 60 billion as of FY 2020 and is one of the larger 

segments of the Indian retail sector. 

 

India Apparel Market Size & Level of Organization 

 

Apparel market size in FY 2020 was INR 4,47,666 Cr (US$ 59.7 Bn) and expected to grow at a CAGR of ~8.9% 

between FY 2020 and FY 2025 to reach INR 6,87,263 Cr (US$ 91.6 Bn) by FY 2025 on the back of factors like 

higher brand consciousness, increasing digitization, greater purchasing power and increasing urbanization. 

 

While the apparel market has degrown by ~32% to reach a value of INR 3,06,225 (US$ 40.8 Bn) in FY 2021 due to 

negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the market is expected to recover at a higher pace of 22.4% between FY 

2022 and FY 2025. 

 

While the CAGR of total apparel market between FY 2020 and FY 2025 is expected to be ~8.9%, the branded 

apparel and organized apparel retail are expected to grow at CAGR of ~10% and ~11% respectively in the same 

period. In other words, growth of both branded apparel share and organized apparel retail share in apparel 

category will outpace the overall category growth. COVID-19 gave impetus to the growth of e-commerce which is 

expected to become a significant growth driver for the organised market. 

 

Key Trends in Indian Apparel Retail 

 
 Digital enablement of all Retail Channels  

 
 Online Purchase of Apparel  

 
 Technology Intervention  

 
 Digital Marketing  
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 Category Extension & Customization by Premium Brands  
 

 Growth of Private Brands  
 

Key Restraints in the Indian Apparel Sector 

 
i. Environmental Sustainability  
 
ii. Adverse Consumer Sentiments  
 
iii. Rising Raw Material Cost  

 
Women Apparel And Women Indian Wear Market 

 
India Apparel Market Size & Level of Organization 

 
Apparel market size in FY 2020 was INR 4,47,666 Cr (US$ 59.7 Bn) and expected to grow at a CAGR of ~8.9% 

between FY 2020 and FY 2025 to reach INR 6,87,263 Cr (US$ 91.6 Bn) by FY 2025 on the back of factors like 

higher brand consciousness, increasing digitization, greater purchasing power and increasing urbanization.  

 
While the apparel market has degrown by ~32% to reach a value of INR 3,06,225 (US$ 40.8 Bn) in FY 2021 due to 

negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the market is expected to recover at a higher pace of 22.4% between FY 

2022 and FY 2025. 

 
While the CAGR of total apparel market between FY 2020 and FY 2025 is expected to be ~8.9%, the branded 

apparel and organized apparel retail are expected to grow at CAGR of ~10% and ~11% respectively in the same 

period. In other words, growth of both branded apparel share and organized apparel retail share in apparel 

category will outpace the overall category growth. COVID-19 gave impetus to the growth of e-commerce which is 

expected to become a significant growth driver for the organised market. The pace of adoption of online purchase 

has, hence, further accelerated and has emerged as an important channel for apparel and lifestyle retail 

 
 

Women Apparel Market in India  

 
The women apparel market contributes ~36% of the total apparel market of India in FY 2020 and is estimated at 

INR 1,63,291 cr. (~US$ 21.8 Billion) and the same is expected to grow at a CAGR of 9.2% for the next 5 years to 

reach INR 2,53,733 cr. (US$ 33.8 Billion) by FY 2025. 

 

Growth Projections of Women Apparel Market (in INR Cr) – FY 2015, FY 2018, FY 2020, FY 2021, FY 2025P  

 

104,132 

140,249
163,291 

111,420 

253,733 

FY 2015 FY 2018 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2025P
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Source: Technopak Analysis 
 
 
 
 

Factors like sustained growth of Indian daily wear; continued demand for Indian festive wear; rising share of 

organized retail; design innovations and changing consumer demographics etc. are aiding the growth of Indian 

women wear market and the trends will be there for upcoming years to fuel the women wear market in India. 

 
Women Indian Wear Market 

 
In FY 2020, Women Indian wear accounted for around 71% of the total women apparel market & stood at INR 

1,15,139 cr. (US$ 15.3 billion), implying women Indian wear is the mainstay for women apparel market in India. 

The women Indian wear category can broadly be classified into Saree & others (others includes Indian dresses, 

Lehenga etc.) and SKD (including Sets, Mix & Match, Dupattas. Stoles etc.). It also comprises of fusion wear, which 

is an amalgamation of other cultural influences on Indian wear. 

 

The Women Indian wear market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 8% for next 5 years to reach INR 1,68,222 (US$ 

22.4 billion) by FY 2025. Sarees & Others category forms almost 54% of the Indian wear market for women, the 

rest of the market of 46% is contributed by SKDs (salwar, kameez, dupatta) etc. 

 

Organized Retail in Women Indian Wear 

 

In FY 2020, 77% of women Indian wear was sold through the unorganized/traditional channel. However, the 

share is expected to reduce to 62% by FY 2025 enabled by growth of organized retail players (Retail led brands) 

taking a multi-channel retail route, expansion of value retailers and LFS formats and growth of E-commerce. 

 

Share of Organised and Unorganised Retail as a percentage of Women Apparel Market (in INR Cr) – FY 2015, FY 

2018, FY 2020, FY 2021, FY 2025P 

 

 
Source: Technopak Analysis 

 

FY 2015 FY 2018 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2025P

Unorganised Retail 84,407 109,394 119,491 77,293 146,483

Organised Retail 19,725 30,855 43,800 34,127 107,250

19% 22% 27% 31%

42%81%

78%
73%

69%

58%

INR 1,04,132 Cr INR 1,40,249 Cr INR 1,63,291 Cr

INR 1,11,420 Cr

INR 2,53,733 Cr
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The organized women Indian wear was estimated at INR 26,482 cr. in FY 2020 and is expected to grow at a CAGR 

of 23.2% for the next 5 years to reach INR 63,924 cr. by FY 2025. 

 

VALUE FASHION MARKET 

 

Value Apparel Retailing Overview 

 

Value fashion in India was estimated to be ~INR 2,55,000 Cr (US$ 34 Bn) in FY 2020, accounting for 57% of the 

overall apparel retail market (INR 4,47,666 Cr). The balance is constituted by the non-value segment. Within non-

value segment, premium and super-premium segments account for almost 16% and the rest is contributed by the 

lower value segment. While the overall category is projected to grow at a rate of 6% in the coming 5 years, the 

branded value apparel and organized value apparel retail are expected to grow at CAGR of ~12.6% and ~13% 

respectively during the same period. In other words, growth of both branded value apparel share and organized 

value apparel retail share in apparel category will outpace the overall category growth. 

 

The organized players in this segment are bringing together economy and mid-segment of fashion aiming to 

provide quality fashion at affordable prices in a good retail environment. These large format stores catering to the 

entire basket of family needs are aiming at consumers who are the first time users of branded products or at 

fashion conscious middle class consumers seeking quality at affordable prices. Value retail is focussed on meeting 

the aspirations of the consuming class in the country. There is a large addressable market for value apparel retail 

made up of millennials and Gen Y & Z customers (14-40 age group) and residing in tier II, III and IV cities in urban 

and semi-urban areas. This market comprises of households with an average annual income of US$ 5,000 – US$ 

10,000, of fashion conscious, value and quality seeking youth and young families (newborns to 40-year-old 

consumers) which forms the bulk of purchasing power of the Indian population. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES 

 

We are one of the largest retailers of ethnic apparel, particularly sarees, in south India in terms of revenues and 

profit after tax in Fiscal 2019, 2020 and 2021. (Source: Technopak Report) Through our four store formats, i.e., 

Kalamandir, VaraMahalakshmi Silks, Mandir, and KLM Fashion Mall, we offer our products to various segments of 

the market that include premium ethnic fashion, ethnic fashion for middle income and value-fashion, with a 

variety of products across different price points, thereby catering to customers across all market segments. We 

are all set to launch our 50th store, mostly in the first week of October, 2022, thus creating a significant milestone 

in the history of our Company.  Focus on spreading India’s vibrant culture, traditions and heritage by offering a 

diverse range of products which includes various types of ultra-premium and premium sarees suitable for 

weddings, party wear, as well as occasional and daily wear; lehengas, men’s ethnic wear, children’s ethnic wear 

and value fashion products comprising fusion wear and western wear for women, men and children, helps us 

leverage the opportunities across the apparel Industry.  

 

Variety of Products and Stock Keeping Units  

 

We focus on creating a unique in-store experience for our customers and offer multiple options, sometimes within 

the same product. For instance, we have sarees that have the same print, but might have 3-inch, 4-inch and 6-inch 

borders with variations in design. Similarly, for some of our stock keeping units (“SKUs”), we keep variety of stock 

in multiple sizes. Our strategy of cluster-based stores helps us in effective stock rotations. Over the years we have 

expanded our portfolio across the four formats, each offering different set of products catering to their respective 

target customer segments and we continue to expand our product range.  
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Design 

  

We focus on creating innovative designs with an emphasis on quality to offer new and varied products to our 

customers throughout the year. We outsource our design features and leverage the design infrastructure that is 

available with third party manufacturers to maintain the latest design trends and creativity. We also from time to 

time interact with independent designers to design our products which are then subsequently sent to the master 

weavers and third party manufacturers.  

 

Store Aesthetics and Interiors  

 

Our focus on creating a differentiated shopping experience for our customers, in our opinion, is a key factor in 

word-of-mouth references as well as helping us increase our average business per customer. We have introduced 

certain unique experiences involving religious and traditional rituals to bless product purchases, particularly if for 

purchases for weddings and other key social occasions. We have also made appropriate investments on interior 

works at our stores to ensure that the overall ambience matches the shopping experience. 

 

Customer Centric Product Pricing  

 

We arrive at a pricing point for each of our products through a detailed mechanism that takes into consideration a 

range of factors, including costs incurred in sourcing, marketing and operations, amongst other ancillary 

expenses. We strive to ensure that our products remain aspirational yet of value for money for our customers, and 

exclusively manage and regulate the prices at which our products are sold. Our products are uniformly priced 

across our channels. 

 

Marketing and Sales  

 

We produce distinctive and unique marketing campaigns to generate high customer engagement. We believe our 

focus on quality, customer service, product range and customer-oriented policies together with our celebrity 

endorsements, targeted marketing and arrangements with local artisans to address regional preferences, have 

enabled us to develop strong brand recognition and customer loyalty.  

 

Our Inventory  

 

We manage our inventory and logistics as well as our entire supply chain for all our channels from our three 

warehouses in Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana, with an aggregate area of approximately 162,000 

square feet, as of May 31, 2022 and a designated storage space located at one our stores in Chennai, Tamil Nadu.  

 

Our Competitive Strengths  

 

Our key competitive strengths include:  

 Among the leading ethnic wear and value-fashion retail company in south India having a 

portfolio of established formats with focused sales and marketing strategy. 

 Leading apparel retail brand in India with a scalable model which is well positioned to leverage 

growth in the ethnic and value-fashion apparel industry in India.  

 Strong presence in offline and online marketplace with an omni-channel network.   

 Track record of growth, profitability and unit economics with an efficient operating model.   
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 Experienced Promoter, management and in-house teams with proven execution capabilities.  

 

RISKS CONCERNS AND THREATS 

 

 Our business is highly concentrated on the sale of women’s sarees and is vulnerable to variations in demand 

and changes in consumer preference, could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and 
financial condition. 

 

 An inability to effectively market our products, or any deterioration in public perception of our brands, could 

affect customer footfall and consequently adversely impact our business, financial condition, cash flows and 

results of operations. 

 

 Current locations of our stores may become unattractive, and suitable new locations may not be available for 

a reasonable price or acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, we are exposed to risks associated with leasing 

real estate and any adverse developments could materially affect our business, results of operations and 
financial condition. Further, we generated substantially all of our sales from stores located in Southern India 

and any adverse developments affecting our operations in these regions could have an adverse impact on our 

revenue and results of operations. 
 

 Optimal level of inventory need to maintained, otherwise our business, results of operations and financial 

condition may be adversely affected. 
 

 All of our shops, our Registered Office, and warehouses on a leasehold basis. 

 Risks such as labour unrest, slowdowns and increased wage costs, which may have an adverse effect on our 
business, operations, our cash flow and financial condition.  

 

 Products procured from third-party vendors and master weavers. No long term formal agreements with such 

vendors.  

 

 Dependence on third-party transportation providers for the delivery of our products, and any disruption in 

such delivery or failure by third parties to provide their services may adversely affect our operations. 

 

 Growth of online retailers and current trends of discounting and pricing strategies may adversely affect our 

pricing ability, which may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 

 

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of retail trade through retail and departmental stores facilities, 

which in the terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', constitutes a single reporting business segment. 

 

There are no material individual markets outside India and hence the same is not disclosed for geographical 

segments for the segment revenues or results or assets.  

 

We offer a diverse range of products which includes (a) various types of ultra-premium and premium sarees 

suitable for weddings, party wear occasional wear as well as daily wear; (b lehengas, (iii) men’s ethnic wear, (iv) 

children’s ethnic wear and (v) value fashion products comprising fusion wear and western wear for women, men 
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and children. The table below sets forth a breakdown of our revenue from operations from the sale of our sarees 

and other non-saree products: 

 

Category 

Fiscal 2020 Fiscal 2021 Fiscal 2022 

Amount 

(₹ million) 

% of Total 

Revenue 

from 

Operations 

Amount 

(₹ million) 

% of Total 

Revenue 

from 

Operations 

Amount 

(₹ million) 

% of Total 

Revenue 

from 

Operations 

Sarees  7,524.29  64.01%  4,448.96  65.70%  7,607.06  67.36% 

Others*   4,230.30  35.99%  2,322.52  34.30%  3,686.17  32.64% 

Total Revenue  11,754.60  100.00%  6,771.47  100.00%  11,293.23 100.00% 

*Others includes apparel other than Sarees. 

 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Your Company has appropriate internal control systems for business processes, efficiency in its operations, and 

compliance with all the applicable laws and regulations. Regular internal checks and audits ensure that the 

responsibilities are being effectively executed. In-depth review of internal controls, accounting procedures and 

policies of Company is conducted.  

 

Your Company has adopted adequate internal control and audit system commensurate with its size and nature of 

business. Internal audit is carried on a quarterly basis. Internal auditors work with all levels of management and 

the report is placed before the audit committee. The audit committee after reviewing the findings and suggestions 

directs the respective departments to implement the same. 

 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

RESULTS OF OUR OPERATIONS 

 

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our results of operations for Fiscal 2021 and 

2022.  

 

Particulars Fiscal 2021 Fiscal 2022 

Amount (₹ 

million)  

Percentage of 

Total Income 

(%) 

Amount (₹ 

million)  

Percentage of 

Total Income 

(%) 

Revenue from operations 6,772.48 99.73% 11,293.23 99.67% 

Other income  18.47 0.27% 36.93 0.33% 

Total income 6,790.95 100.00% 11,330.16 100.00% 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 4,451.60 65.55% 8,472.12 74.77% 

Changes in inventories 16.83 0.25% (1,093.42) (9.65)% 

Employee benefits expenses 865.82 12.75% 1,027.51 9.07% 

Finance costs 274.43 4.04% 286.39 2.53% 

Depreciation and amortization 

expenses 

294.57 4.34% 308.16 2.72% 
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Particulars Fiscal 2021 Fiscal 2022 

Amount (₹ 

million)  

Percentage of 

Total Income 

(%) 

Amount (₹ 

million)  

Percentage of 

Total Income 

(%) 

Impairment of windmill - - 50.94 0.45% 

Other expenses 814.61 12.00% 1,505.60 13.29% 

Total expenses 6,717.87 98.92% 10,557.30 93.18% 

Profit before tax and exceptional 

items 

73.07 1.08% 772.86 6.82% 

Exceptional items  -    -  -    - 

Profit before tax 73.07 1.08% 772.86 6.82% 

Current tax 19.65 0.29% 213.26 1.88% 

Deferred tax 2.10 0.03% (17.61) (0.16)% 

Short/ (excess) provision of 

earlier years 

0.01 0.00% 0.34 0.00% 

Total tax expense 21.76 0.32% 195.99 1.73% 

Profit/ (loss) for the year 51.31 0.76% 576.87 5.09% 

 

FISCAL 2022 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2021 

 

Total Income 

 

Total income increased by 66.84% from ₹ 6,790.95 million for Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 11,330.16 million for Fiscal 2022, 

primarily due to an increase in our revenue from operations and other income as discussed below: 

 

Revenue from operations 

 

Revenue from operations increased by 66.75% from ₹ 6,772.48 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 11,293.23 million in 

Fiscal 2022. The increase in our revenue from operations can be primarily attributed to an increase in operations 

on account of lifting of lockdown post May 2021 and resumption of activities gradually. 

 

Sale of products 

 

Sale of products through our showrooms increased by 65.59% from ₹ 6,716.55 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 

11,121.67 million in Fiscal 2022 whereas sale of products through our online channels increased by 212.36% 

from ₹ 54.92 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 171.55 million in Fiscal 2022, primarily driven by the reducing impact of 

COVID-19 and the resumption of operations at our stores post lifting of lockdown related restrictions in Fiscal 

2022.  

 

Other operating revenues 

 

Other operating revenue was nil in Fiscal 2022 as compared to ₹ 1.01 million in Fiscal 2021 due to closure of our 

windmill operations. 

 

Other income 



  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

Other income increased by 99.93% from ₹ 18.47 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 36.93 million in Fiscal 2022. This was 

primarily due to an increase in non-operating income i.e., rental income from ₹ 9.98 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 

21.61 million in Fiscal 2022; and interest income on fixed deposits from ₹ 3.84 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 9.93 

million in Fiscal 2022. 

 

Expenses 

 

Total expenses increased by 57.15% from ₹ 6,717.87 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 10,557.30 million in Fiscal 2022 

due to the reasons discussed below:  

 

Purchases of stock-in-trade  

Purchases of stock-in-trade increased by 90.32% from ₹ 4,451.60 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 8,472.12 million in 

Fiscal 2022 primarily on account of increased purchases due to an increase in sales in Fiscal 2022.  

 

Changes in inventories 

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade changed from ₹ 16.83 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ (1,093.42) million in 

Fiscal 2022, primarily due to a higher inventory of stock-in-trade at end of Fiscal 2022 as compared to Fiscal 

2021. 

 

Employee benefit expenses  

Employee benefit expenses increased by 18.67% from ₹ 865.82 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 1,027.51 million in 

Fiscal 2022 primarily due to an decrease in salaries, wages and bonus by 15.76% from ₹ 823.38 million in Fiscal 

2021 to ₹ 953.12 million in Fiscal 2022, which was on account of resumption of operations during the year at 

ordinary levels, after the impact of COVID-19 reduced, and staff was required at full capacity to cater to the return 

in customer demand. Further director’s remuneration increased from ₹ 16.18 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 38.46 

million in Fiscal 2022. Further staff welfare expenses increased from ₹ 17.37 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 24.16 

million in Fiscal 2022. 

 

Finance costs 

Finance costs increased by 4.36% from ₹ 274.43 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 286.39 million in Fiscal 2022 primarily 

due to increase in interest expenses on borrowings from ₹ 181.09 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 190.33 million in 

Fiscal 2022 which was primarily due to increased, increase in interest on lease rental discounting from ₹ 64.34 

million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 76.34 million in Fiscal 2022 on account of new leases and renewal of agreements of our 

showrooms, and increase in processing charges from ₹ 6.05 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 11.95 million in Fiscal 

2022. This was partially offset by a decrease in interest on others from ₹ 22.42 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 8.09 

million in Fiscal 2022. 

 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses increased by 4.61% from ₹ 294.57 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 308.16 

million in Fiscal 2022 primarily on account of increase in depreciation on property, plant and equipment from ₹ 

164.81 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 169.07 million in Fiscal 2022 due to net addition to our gross block of assets of ₹ 

253.24 million and increase in amortisation of right-of-use assets from ₹ 107.95 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 117.60 

million in Fiscal 2022 on account of new leases and renewal of agreements of our showrooms.  

 

Impairment of windmill 

We accounted for an impairment loss of windmill of ₹ 50.94 million in Fiscal 2022 as compared to nil in Fiscal 

2021. The impairment loss of windmill is due deterioration of the future prospects of the market conditions and 

due to decline in the profitability associated with the same. 
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Other expenses 

Other expenses increased by 84.82% from ₹ 814.61 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 1,505.60 million in Fiscal 2022 

primarily due to increase in (i) rent from ₹ 138.38 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 216.09 million in Fiscal 2022 on 

account of a return to the original amounts payable under the lease agreements, instead of the negotiated rates 

being paid during the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the actual outlay towards our rent expense was (₹ 257.44) 

million in Fiscal 2021 compared to (₹ 367.75) million in Fiscal 2022; (ii) electrical charges from ₹ 109.52 million 

in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 144.46 million in Fiscal 2022 due to resumption of our store activities at pre-COVID-19 levels 

and opening of four new showrooms; (iii) professional charges of ₹ 37.50 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 87.80 million 

in Fiscal 2022 on account of increase in payment of fee to celebrity brand ambassadors for endorsements and 

showroom openings, marketing consultant services for stores and software consultation charges; (iv) increase in 

advertisement expenses from ₹ 87.18 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 269.86 million in Fiscal 2022 due to resumption 

in operations and return in customer demand after COVID-19, making it important to create brand recall; and (v) 

increase in sales commission and business promotion expenses from ₹ 22.81 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 215.86 

million in Fiscal 2022 on account of return in customer demand after COVID-19, making it important to gain 

customer loyalty and brand recall and increase visits to stores after the lockdowns owing to COVID-19. This was 

marginally offset by decrease in rent cum commission, amongst others.  

 

Profit before tax 

For the reasons discussed above, our profit before tax increased by 957.64% from ₹ 73.07 million in Fiscal 2021 

to ₹ 772.86 million in Fiscal 2022.  

 

Tax expenses 

Total tax expenses increased by 800.63% from ₹ 21.76 million in Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 195.99 million in Fiscal 2022. 

Our current tax expense increased from 19.65 million for Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 213.26 million for Fiscal 2022. We 

recorded a deferred tax benefit of ₹ 17.61 million in Fiscal 2022 as compared to a deferred tax charge of ₹ 2.10 

million in Fiscal 2021. Taxation provision in respect of earlier years was ₹ 0.34 million in Fiscal 2022 as compared 

to ₹ 0.01 million in Fiscal 2021. 

 

Profit for the year 

For the reasons discussed above, our profit for the year increased by 1,024.21% from a profit of ₹ 51.31 million in 

Fiscal 2021 to ₹ 576.87 million in Fiscal 2022.  

 

 

FISCAL 2021 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2020  

 

Total Income 

Total income was lower at ₹ 6,790.95 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 11,786.17 million in Fiscal 2020, 

primarily due to the impact of the COVID-19 crisis and the temporary closure of a number of our stores across 

India due to lockdown related restrictions on our business operations commencing from end of financial year 

2020, as well as reduced store-level operations, including reduced operating hours in line with government 

guidelines and reduced consumer spending, which resulted in a significant decrease in customer footfalls at our 

stores. 

 

Revenue from operations 

Revenue from operations were lower at ₹ 6,772.48 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 11,755.60 million in 

Fiscal 2020. The decrease in our revenue from operations can be attributed primarily to severe impact of 

lockdowns and restrictions imposed on account of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
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Sale of products 

Sale of products through showrooms was lower at ₹ 6,716.55 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 11,754.60 

million in Fiscal 2020 due to the impact of lockdowns and restrictions imposed on account of COVID-19 pandemic 

resulting in temporary closure of our stores for certain periods and reduced operating hours across our various 

store formats. This was offset by an increase in sale of products through online channels from nil in Fiscal 202 to ₹ 

54.92 million in Fiscal 2021, primarily driven by our tie-ups with various e-commerce channels and increased 

consumer traffic on our own website.  

 

Other operating revenues 

Other operating revenue was the same in Fiscal 2021 and Fiscal 2020 at ₹ 1.01 million. 

 

Other income 

Other income was lower at ₹ 18.47 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 30.57 million in Fiscal 2020. This was 

primarily due to decrease in other non-operating income or rental income from ₹ 20.97 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 

9.98 million in Fiscal 2021 due to reduction in income earned from shop in shop arrangements, since stores 

remained closed owing to COVID-19 lockdowns. Further our interest income on fixed deposits was lower at ₹ 3.84 

million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 5.61 million in Fiscal 2020. 

 

Expenses 

Total expenses were lower at ₹ 6,717.87 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 11,252.40 million in Fiscal 2020 due 

to the reasons discussed below:  

 

Purchases of stock-in-trade  

Purchases of stock-in-trade were lower at ₹ 4,451.60 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 8,734.62 million in 

Fiscal 2020 primarily on account of the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic resulting in lower purchases of 

new stock. 

 

Changes in inventories 

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade changed from ₹ (274.01) million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 16.83 million in Fiscal 

2021, primarily due to higher inventories at the beginning of Fiscal 2021 as compared to opening inventories in 

Fiscal 2020. 

 

Employee benefit expenses  

Our employee benefit expenses were lower at ₹ 865.82 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 1,068.58 million in 

Fiscal 2020 primarily due to a decrease in salaries, wages and bonus by 17.51% from ₹ 998.12 million in Fiscal 

2020 to ₹ 823.38 million in Fiscal 2021, which was due to optimisation of labour force as a result of the lockdowns 

imposed on account of COVID-19, including partial reduction of salaries for the months from April to November, 

2020. and non-payment of incentives due to showroom closure and lockdowns in certain regions. Further our 

directors’ remuneration was lower at ₹ 16.18 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 21.78 million in Fiscal 2020. 

Staff welfare expenses declined from ₹ 36.53 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 17.37 million in Fiscal 2021 and there was 

a decrease in contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance from ₹ 7.33 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 

4.28 million in Fiscal 2021. 

 

Finance costs 

Our finance costs slightly increased marginally by 0.29% from ₹ 273.63 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 274.43 million 

in Fiscal 2021 primarily due to increase in interest expenses on borrowings from ₹ 177.01 million in Fiscal 2020 

to ₹ 181.09 million in Fiscal 2021 which was due to borrowings availed in order to meet fixed costs during the 
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COVID-19 pandemic, when stores were closed owing to lockdowns and business from stores was reduced, 

increase in foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net from ₹ (1.49) million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 0.53 million in Fiscal 2021 

and increase in processing charges from ₹ 4.35 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 6.05 million in Fiscal 2021. This was 

partially offset primarily by a decrease in interest on others from ₹ 28.81 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 22.42 million 

in Fiscal 2021. 

 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses increased by 13.17% from ₹ 260.29 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 294.57 

million in Fiscal 2021 primarily on account of increase in depreciation on property, plant and equipment from ₹ 

135.67 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 164.81 million in Fiscal 2021 and increase in amortisation of right-to-use assets 

from ₹ 102.39 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 107.95 million in Fiscal 2021.  

 

Other expenses 

Our other expenses were lower at ₹ 814.61 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 1,189.29 million in Fiscal 2020 

primarily due to decrease in (i) rent expense which declined from ₹ 190.65 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 138.38 

million in Fiscal 2021 due to rent relief negotiations pursuant to which we arrived at negotiated agreements with 

respect to reductions in rent and our rental obligations during the COVID-19 pandemic with certain of our 

landlords. However, the actual outlay towards our rent expense was (₹ 300.15) million in Fiscal 2020 compared 

with (₹ 257.44) million in Fiscal 2021 (ii) electrical charges from ₹ 155.16 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 109.52 

million in Fiscal 2021 due to nationwide lockdown and temporary closures of our showrooms on account of the 

COVID-19 pandemic resulting in reduced operating hours and reduced usage of electricity; (iii) office and stores 

maintenance expenses from ₹ 81.12 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 50.97 million in Fiscal 2021 on account of COVID-

19 pandemic resulting in temporary closure of our stores for certain periods and reduced operating hours across 

our various store formats; (iv) advertisement expenses from ₹ 276.10 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 87.18 million in 

Fiscal 2021 on account of reduce television and print advertisement on account of the adverse impact on revenue 

due to the COVID-19 pandemic; (v) packing material expenses from ₹ 91.71 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 62.76 

million in Fiscal 2021 due to the decrease in quantum of sales during the COVID-19 pandemic; and (vi) bank 

charges from ₹ 59.20 million in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 31.13 million in Fiscal 2021 on account of reduced level of 

operations. This was partially offset by an increase in (i) repairs and maintenance expenses from ₹ 126.62 million 

in Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 184.00 million in Fiscal 2021 on account of reorganizing of internal store layout so as to enable 

us to adhere to COVID-19 protocols including social distancing. We also undertook maintenance work at various 

store locations. 

 

Profit before tax 

For the reasons discussed above, our profit before tax was lower at ₹ 73.07 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to ₹ 

533.77 million in Fiscal 2020. 

 

Tax expenses 

Our total tax expenses was lower at ₹ 21.76 million in Fiscal 2021 compared to from ₹ 112.81 million in Fiscal 

2020. Our current tax expense was lower at ₹ 19.65 million for Fiscal 2021 due to a decline in our profit before tax 

in Fiscal 2021 compared to 122.39 million for Fiscal 2020. We recorded a deferred tax charge of ₹ 2.10 million in 

Fiscal 2021 compared to a deferred tax credit of ₹ 9.58 million in Fiscal 2020. Taxation provision in respect of 

earlier years was ₹ 0.01 million in Fiscal 2021 as compared to nil in Fiscal 2020. 

 

Profit for the year 

For the reasons discussed above, our profit for the year decreased by 87.81% from a profit of ₹ 420.96 million in 

Fiscal 2020 to ₹ 51.31 million in Fiscal 2021.  
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CASH FLOWS  

The following table sets forth certain information in relation to our cash flows with respect to operating activities, 

investing activities and financing activities for Fiscal  2021 and 2022: 

 

Particulars Fiscal 

2021 2022 

(₹ million) 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (152.00) 455.98 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities (179.82) (420.06) 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities 194.26 6.98 

 

Operating Activities 

 

Fiscal 2022 

In Fiscal 2022, net cash from operating activities was ₹ 455.98 million. Net profit before tax and exceptional items 

for the year was ₹ 772.86 million in Fiscal 2022 and adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to operating profit 

before working capital changes primarily consisted of depreciation and amortisation expense of ₹ 169.07 million; 

interest expenses of ₹ 274.44 million; and amortisation of right to use asset of ₹ 117.60 million. The main working 

capital adjustments in Fiscal 2022 included an increase in inventories of ₹ 1,094.64 million and an increase in 

other current financial and non-financial asset of ₹ 181.90 million, which was partially offset by an increase in 

trade payables of ₹ 215.19 million and an increase in other financial liabilities of ₹ 124.72 million. Cash generated 

from operations in Fiscal 2022 amounted to ₹ 475.23 million. Income tax paid amounted to ₹ 19.26 million. 

 

Fiscal 2021 

In Fiscal 2021, net cash used in operating activities was ₹ 152.00 million. Net profit before tax and exceptional 

items for the year was ₹ 73.07 million in Fiscal 2021 and adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to operating 

profit before working capital changes primarily consisted of depreciation and amortisation expense of ₹ 164.81 

million; interest expenses of ₹ 268.39 million; and amortisation of right to use asset of ₹ 107.95 million. The main 

working capital adjustments in Fiscal 2021 included a decrease in trade payables of ₹ 624.63 million and a 

decrease in other financial liabilities of ₹ 206.72 million, which was partially offset by a decrease in inventories of 

₹ 45.47 million. Cash used in operations in Fiscal 2021 amounted to ₹ 102.55 million. Income tax paid amounted 

to ₹ 49.44 million. 

 

Investing Activities 

 

Fiscal 2022 

Net cash used in investing activities was ₹ 420.06 million in Fiscal 2022, primarily on account of purchase of 

property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress (including capital advances) of ₹ 253.21 million and 

increase in deposits of ₹ 198.39 million. This was partially offset by other income of ₹ 21.61 million and interest 

income of ₹ 9.93 million. 

 

Fiscal 2021 

Net cash used in investing activities was ₹ 179.82 million in Fiscal 2021, primarily on account of purchase of 

property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress (including capital advances) of ₹ 55.44 million and 

increase in deposits of ₹ 138.20 million. This was partially offset by other income of ₹ 9.98 million and interest 

income of ₹ 3.84 million. 
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Financing Activities 

 

Fiscal 2022 

 

Net cash flow from financing activities was ₹ 6.98 million in Fiscal 2022, primarily on account of increase in short 

term borrowings of ₹ 519.60 million, which was partially offset by interest paid and effect of foreign exchange of ₹ 

272.01 million, principal payment of lease liability of ₹ 153.65 million and repayment of long-term borrowings of 

₹ 86.96 million.  

 

Fiscal 2021 

 

Net cash flow from financing activities was ₹ 194.26 million in Fiscal 2021, primarily on account of increase in 

short term borrowings of ₹ 297.57 million, proceeds from long-term borrowings of ₹ 227.72 million and proceeds 

from issue of share capital of ₹ 61.00 million. This was partially offset by interest paid and effect of foreign 

exchange of ₹ 267.86 million and principal payment of lease liability of ₹ 124.17 million. 

 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING 

NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 

 

Your Company recognizes the value and importance that its employees hold for the Company. As a matter of fact, 
the said holds good for any organization, especially for the one which operates in retail sector.  Our business is 
manpower intensive and the success of our business depends on maintaining high standards of customer service 
in our stores. This is dependent on our ability to attract, hire, train, and retain skilled personnel particularly for 
sales functions, monitor them continuously on key service parameters and guide them regularly. We had 4,298 
employees and 85 contract labourers as of May 31, 2022. As we seek to expand our retail network, we need 
experienced manpower that has relevant knowledge of our target customers and of the local market and the retail 
industry to operate our stores, respectively. Across our operations, the attrition rate in our Company is on par 
with industry standards  
 
We consider our labour relations to be extremely good, and have measures in place aimed at maintaining 
balanced employee relations. We ensure that  there are no disruptions in our operations due to any sort of labour 
unrest. Our employees are not unionised. 
 
OUTLOOK 

 

The Financial Year 2021-22 suffered two major jolts, causing far reaching impact on the global economy. First, it 

was COVID-19 and then the Russia – Ukraine war. The beginning of the financial year witnessed unprecedented 

spread of COVID-19 resulting in lockdowns, restrictions on movements across the country and mass fatalities. 

Towards the end of 2nd quarter of the FY 2021-22, while the waves of COVID started to subside steadily and 

normalcy was about to be restored, the Russia – Ukraine war broke out in the 4th quarter of the FY. The said 

events may have peculiar impacts on the global economy. While we are collectively and parallelly combating this 

pandemic, we are also slowly but steadily trying to recover and restore normalcy in our economy and also our 

lives.  

We believe in the philosophy “there is light at the end of tunnel”. With this faith embedded in our business 

strategies, we are marching ahead with our tradition of scaling up our business by opening of new showrooms,  

adding novel modes of business and addition of new formats.   
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While lockdowns imposed initially impacted our revenues, the demand for our products from online channels 

continued to remain strong and following the easing of lockdowns and resumption of economic activities, our 

operations steadily recovered in Fiscal 2022. 

Due to the impact of COVID-19, we recognized the importance of expanding our sales through online e-commerce 

marketplaces and started selling our products through our own online website in Fiscal 2021, 

www.brandmandir.com, www.kanchivml.com, www.kalamandir.com and www.klmfashionmall.com, as well as 

through other third-party online e-commerce websites. In Fiscal 2021 and 2022, our revenue from operations 

attributable to online sales was ₹ 54.92 million, and ₹ 171.55 million, and accounted for 0.81%, and 1.52%, 

respectively, of our revenue from operations. 

 

 

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 
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DETAILS OF RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED  

During the year on a standalone basis, the significant changes in the financial ratios of the Company, as compared 
to the previous year are summarised below: 
 
 

       (₹ in million, unless otherwise mentioned) 

Particulars For the year 

ended March 31, 

2022 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

Profit for the year (A) 576.87 51.31 420.96 

Weighted average number of equity shares at the 

end of the year for the calculation of basic and 

diluted earnings per share (B) 

120,322,940 118,031,160 117,272,940 

Basic earnings per share (C=A/B) (in ₹) 4.79 0.43 3.59 

Diluted earnings per share (D=A/B) (in ₹) 4.79 0.43 3.59 

Reconciliation of return on net worth    

Profit for the year (A) 576.87 51.31 420.96 

Net worth (B) 3,006.61 2,429.90 2,315.05 

Return on net worth (in %) (C=A/B) 19.19 2.11 18.18 

 

Notes:  

s 

1. Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated May 3, 2022 and Shareholders dated May 18, 2022, each equity 
share of our Company of face value of ₹10 each was sub-divided into five Equity Shares of face value of ₹2 
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each and accordingly, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of our Company was sub-
divided from 24,064,588 Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each to 120,322,940 Equity Shares of ₹2 each. 

2. In terms of Paragraph 64 of Indian Accounting Standard 33 Earnings per Share, if the number of ordinary 

shares outstanding increases as a result of share split, calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for 

all periods presented shall be adjusted retrospectively. If these changes occur after the reporting period but 

before the financial information is approved for issue, the per share calculations for those and any prior 
period financial information presented shall be based on the new number of shares. The calculation of basic 

and diluted EPS has been considered considering the impact of the split stated above. 

3. Weighted average number of Equity Shares is the number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of 

the year adjusted by the number of Equity Shares issued during the year/period multiplied by the time 

weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are 
outstanding as a proportion of total number of days during the year. This has been adjusted proportionately 

for all periods presented by giving effect to the subdivision subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

4. Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share: Restated profit for the year divided by the weighted average 

number of shares at the end of the year. Basic and diluted EPS are computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 - 
Earnings per share. 

5. Return on net worth %: Return on Net Worth (%) is calculated by dividing the restated profit for the year to 

the Net worth. 

6. Net assets value per share (in ₹): Net Asset Value per Share represents Net worth divided by the numbers of 

shares outstanding at the end of respective year. The number of shares outstanding at the end of reporting 

period has been adjusted proportionately for all periods presented by giving effect to the subdivision 
subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

7. “Net  worth” means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the 

profits and securities premium account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss account, after 

deducting the aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous 

expenditure not written off, as per the restated balance sheet, but does not include reserves created out of 
revaluation of assets, capital reserve, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation as per the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. 

8. “EBITDA” is calculated as restated profit for the year plus tax expense, finance cost, depreciation and 

amortization expenses less other income. 

 

 

AWARDS 

 

During the year under review, your Company has won the Following Awards  

 Most Admired Company of the Year (Apparel) by CMO Global. 
 

 Fit and Fab Award by Global Spa 
 

 Times Retail Icon Award for Best Silk Showroom, Best Affordable Fashion Brand and Best Designer Saree 
Showroom by Times of India 
 

 Awarded as Trusted Group of the Year – Textiles & Garments by Make in India Emerging Leaders 
Excellence in Business and Service Sector 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Statements in this management discussion analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities-laws and regulations. Actual 
results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could make difference 
to Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting the domestic market and the overseas markets in 
which the Company operates, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and other 
incidental factors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 

Managing Director Whole time Director 
DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 

                      
                                               

Place: Hyderabad  
Date: 19.09.2022 
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Annexure – VI 

 

 

A Report on Corporate Governance for the year 2021-22 - Attached 
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Annexure - VII 
 

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS & BOARD DIVERSITY 
 

1. Objective & Scope 
 

The objective of this policy is to lay down the criteria for appointment of Directors on the Board of Directors 
(“Board”) of Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited (“Company”) and the organization’s approach to Board Diversity. 
This policy is to be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance guidelines and Remuneration policy of the 
Company, as approved and amended from time to time. 
 
The policy applies only to the appointment of Directors and not to any other employees. 
 

2. Appointment of Directors 
 

The Board, on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, is responsible for selection 
and appointment of Directors on the Board of the Company and is subject to approval of Shareholders, wherever 
applicable. 
 
The appointment of all Directors is subject to the articles of association of the Company, provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations, including any modifications thereto from time to time. 
 
The re-appointments of Directors on the Board is also subject to the evaluation of the Director basis the 
performance of the concerned Director in the previous term. 
 

3. Board Diversity 
 

All appointments to the Board will continue to be made on merit. However, the Company believes that 
establishing and maintaining diversity of the Board is one of the key aspects of the selection and appointment of 
Board members. 

 
The Company believes that, Board diversity basis the gender, race, age will help build diversity of thought and will 
set the tone at the top. A mix of individuals representing different geographies, culture, industry experience, 
qualification and skill set will bring in different perspectives and help the organization grow. 

 
It is always the endeavor of the organization to maintain Board diversity while retaining its philosophy of 
selection and appointment of board member on the basis of merit. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company shall at all times have an optimum combination of executive and non-
executive directors and independent Directors. 
 

4. Criteria for Selection of Independent Directors and Key Skills, Expertise, and Core Competencies 
  of the Board. 

 
The Board of the Company comprises of eminent personalities and leaders in their respective fields. These 
Directors are nominated based on well-defined selection criteria. 
 
The Board Governance, Nomination and Compensation Committee: 

 
a. considers, inter alia, key qualifications, skills, expertise and competencies, whilst recommending to the 

Board the candidature for appointment as Independent Director. 
 

b. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, satisfies itself about the independence of the Directors 
vis-à-vis the Company to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. 



  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

 

 
In the opinion of the Board and the Board Governance, Nomination and Compensation Committee, the 
following is a list of core skills/expertise/competencies required in the context of the Company’s business 
and which are available with the Board: 
 
The following is only an indicative list all Board members need not possess all skill sets. 

 
 

Wide management 
and leadership 
experience 

Strong management and leadership experience, including in areas of business 
development, strategic planning and mergers and acquisitions, ideally with 
major public companies with successful multinational operations in technology, 
manufacturing, banking, investments and finance, international business, 
scientific research and development, senior level government experience and 
academic administration. 

Information Technology Expertise or experience in information technology business, technology 
consulting and operations, emerging areas of technology such as digital, cloud 
and cyber security, intellectual property in information technology domain, and 
knowledge of technology trends. 

Diversity Diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, gender and culture 
brought to the Board by individual members. Varied mix of strategic 
perspectives, geographical focus with knowledge and understanding of key 
geographies. 

Functional and 
managerial experience 

Knowledge and skills in accounting and finance, business judgment, general 
management practices and processes, crisis response and management, 
industry knowledge, macro-economic perspectives, human resources, labour 
laws, international markets, sales and marketing, and risk management. 

Personal values Personal characteristics matching the Company’s values, such as integrity, 
accountability, and high performance standards. 

Corporate governance Experience in developing and implementing good corporate governance 
practices, maintaining board and management accountability, managing 
stakeholders’ interests and Company’s responsibilities towards customers, 
employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies and the communities in which it 
operates. Experience in boards and committees of other large companies. 

 
5. Review of the Policy 

 
The Board of Directors is responsible for review of the policy from time to time. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 

Managing Director Whole time Director 
DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 

                      
                                               

Place: Hyderabad  
Date: 19.09.2022 
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Annexure - VIII 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
 
Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and the Senior Management employees  
 

1.     Introduction: 
 
Your Company recognizes the importance of aligning the business objectives with specific and measureable 
individual objectives and targets. The Company has therefore formulated the remuneration policy for its directors, 
key managerial personnel and the Senior Management employees keeping in view the following objectives: 
 

a) Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate, to run the Company successfully. 

 
b) Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the performance 

benchmarks. 
 

c) Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long 
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

 
2.     Scope: 

 
This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for recommending to 
the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees of the Company. 
 
Terms and References: 

  
     In this Policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

 
3.1 “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company. 
 
3.2 “Key Managerial Personnel” means 
 
(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 
 
(ii) the Company Secretary; 
 
(iii) the Whole-time Director; 
 
(iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and 
 
(v) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
 
3.3  “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” or NR Committee means the committee constituted by 
Board of Directors your Company  in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
4.  Policy: 
 



  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

4.1  Remuneration to Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

4.1.1  The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall 
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors of the Company within the 
overall limits approved by the shareholders. 
 
4.1.2  The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall also 
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 
 
4.1.3  The remuneration structure to the Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel may 
include the following components:  
 

(i) Basic Pay 
 
(ii) Perquisites and Allowances 
 
(iii) Commission  
 
(iv)  Retiral benefits 
 
(v) Annual Performance Bonus 

 
4.2 Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 
 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall review and approve 
the remuneration payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company within the overall limits approved by 
the shareholders, if any. 
 
4.3 Remuneration to other employees 
 
Employees may be assigned grades according to their qualifications and work experience, competencies as well as 
their roles and responsibilities in the organization. Individual remuneration shall be determined within the 
appropriate grade and shall be based on various factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority, experience, and 
prevailing remuneration levels for equivalent jobs. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 

Managing Director Whole time Director 
DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 

                      
                                               

 
Place: Hyderabad  

Date: 19.09.2022 
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Annexure – IX 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

Scope and purpose:  

The purpose of Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is to define the Company's policy on reporting 
irregularities and for submitting complaints regarding questionable accounting, internal accounting controls and 
auditing practices, to provide employees with procedures on reporting such irregularities and complaints, 
including confidential reporting, and to establish procedures for the receipt, retention and remedying of such 
irregularities and complaints. 

This policy applies to all employees of the Company. 

 

Roles and Responsibilities 
 

Role Responsibility 

Audit Committee Review, Investigate and Determine Course of Action 

Nodal Officer Review and Advise 

Any Employee Report irregularities and accounting complaints 

How & Where to Report  

You must report all suspected violations to (i) your immediate supervisor; (ii) the nodal officer, i.e., the Chairman 
of Audit Committee; at or (iii) anonymously, by sending an email to: secretarial@sskl.co.in  

If you have reason to believe that your immediate supervisor or the Company Secretary is involved in the 
suspected violation, your report may be made to the Chairman of the Audit Committee at the registered office of 
the Company. 

Because you have several means of reporting, you need never report to someone you believe may be involved in 
the suspected violation or from whom you would fear retaliation. 

Post reporting Investigation 

All reports under this Policy will be promptly and appropriately investigated, and all information disclosed during 
the course of the investigation will remain confidential, except as necessary to conduct the investigation and take 
any remedial action, in accordance with applicable law. Everyone working for or with the Company has a duty to 
cooperate in the investigation of reports of violations. Failure to cooperate in an investigation, or deliberately 

mailto:secretarial@sskl.co.in
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providing false information during an investigation, can be the basis for disciplinary action, including termination 
of employment. If, at the conclusion of its investigation, the Company determines that a violation has occurred, the 
Company will take effective remedial action commensurate with the nature of the offense. This action may include 
disciplinary action against the accused party, up to and including termination. Reasonable and necessary steps 
will also be taken to prevent any further violations of Company policy. 

Zero - Retaliation policy  

No one may take any adverse action against any employee for complaining about, reporting, or participating or 
assisting in the investigation of, a reasonably suspected violation of any law, this Policy, or the Company's Code of 
Conduct and Ethics. The Company takes reports of such retaliation seriously. Incidents of retaliation against any 
employee reporting a violation or participating in the investigation of a reasonably suspected violation will result 
in appropriate disciplinary action against anyone responsible, including possible termination of employment. 
Those working for or with the Company who engage in retaliation against reporting employees may also be 
subject to civil, criminal and administrative penalties. 

Modification 

The Audit Committee or the Board of Directors of your Company can modify this Policy unilaterally at any time 
without notice. Modification may be necessary, among other reasons, to maintain compliance with national, state 
or local regulations and / or accommodate organizational changes within the Company. 

Please sign the acknowledgment form below and return it to the Company Secretary. This will let the Company 
know that you have received the Policy and are aware of the Company's commitment to a work environment free 
of retaliation for reporting violations of any Company policies or any applicable laws. 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                        Sd/-                                Sd/-  
Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Kalyan Srinivas Annam 

Managing Director Whole time Director 
DIN:01929166 DIN:02428313 

                      
                                               

 
Place: Hyderabad  

Date: 19.09.2022 
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Report on Corporate Governance  

 

1. Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance 

 

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited has continued the legacy of good Corporate Governance practices. The existing 

governance practices are regularly reviewed and are refined in the light of changing environment. 

 

Your company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices within the 

Company and devotes considerable effort to identify and formalize best practices. We believe that effective 

corporate practices are fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of the Company and 

its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of stakeholders and enhance the value of stakeholders. 

 

Your company firmly believes that good corporate governance practices ensure efficient conduct of the affairs 

of the company while upholding the core values of transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability and 

help the company in its goal to maximize value for all its stakeholders. It is a system by which all business 

operations are directed and controlled. 

 

 

2. Board of Directors 

 

The Board is the apex body of the company constituted for overseeing the Company’s overall functions. 

 

a. Composition and Category of Directors 

 

Our Board of directors comprises of an optimum combination of Executive and Non-executive directors with 

a Non-Executive Independent Director appointed as the Chairman. The strength of our board of directors as 

on date of this report is 7 (seven). Out of 7 Directors, 3 directors are executive directors and remaining 4 

directors are independent & non-executive directors including one woman director. The composition of the 

board is in conformity with section 149 of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations. 

 

None of the directors of the company serves as an independent director in more than 7 listed companies, nor 

any of the whole time director serves as an independent director in more than 3 listed companies. 

 

As on the date of this report, the composition of the board is as follows: 

 

S.No Name of the Director Designation 
A Executive Directors 
 Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 

(DIN: 01929166) 
Managing Director 

 Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam 
(DIN: 02428313) 

Whole Time Director 

 Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi 
(DIN: 02689280) 

Whole Time Director 

B Non-Executive Directors  
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 Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi 
(DIN:008241) 

Chairman & Independent Director 

 Mr. Pramod Kasat 
(DIN: 00819790) 

Independent Director 

 Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli 
(DIN: 08407008) 

Independent Director 

 Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna 
(DIN: 00133248) 

Independent Director 

   
   
 

Note :  Mr. Naveen Nandigam and Mr. Laxmi Nivas Jaju resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company 

effective May 03, 2022 

 

b. Number of Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors thereat  

 

The board met 8 times during the financial year 2021-22 on the following dates: 

 

12.04.2021 16.11.2021 
05.07.2021 25.11.2021 
08.07.2021 18.02.2022 
03.09.2021 10.03.2022 

c. Directors Attendance 

 

Name of 
Director 

12.04.20
21 

05.07.20
21 

08.07.20
21 

03.09.20
21 

16.11.20
21 

25.11.20
21 

18.02.20
22 

10.03.20
22 

Mr. Nagakanaka 
Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 

Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present 

Mr. Kalyan 
Srinivas Annam 

Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present 

Mr. Doodeswara 
Kanaka 
Durgarao 

Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present 

Mr. Naveen 
Nandigam 

Present Present Present Present Present Present Absent Present 

Mr. Laxmi Nivas 
Jaju 

Present Present Present Present Absent Absent Present Present 

Ms. Sirisha 
Chintapalli 

Present Present Present Present Present Absent Present Present 

Mr. Ravindra 
Vikram 
Mamidipudi 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A Absent 

Mr. Pramod 
Kasat 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A Absent 

 

Note:   

Mr. Naveen Nandigam and Mr. Laxmi Nivas Jaju resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company 

effective May 03, 2022. 
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The Annual General Meeting for the FY 2020-21 was held on 30.11.2021 and the attendance of Directors 

thereat was as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

d. Number of other board of directors or committees in which a director is a member or 

chairperson and name of the listed entities where the person is a director and the category of 

directorship. 

 

The number of directorships and committee membership including name of the listed entities and 

category of directorship in other companies as on March 31, 2022 are given hereunder 

 

Name of the Director Directorship in 
other 

companies 
(Note-1) 

Committee memberships 
held in other companies 

(Note-2) 

Name of the listed entities 
& Category of directorship 

 Member Chairman 
  

Public 
Private 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga 
Prasad Chalavadi 

1 0 None None None 

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam 1 0 None None None 
Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka 
Durgarao 

0 0 None None None 

Mr. Naveen Nandigam 3 0 4 3  Kapston Services 
Limited-Independent 
Director 

 Tanvi Foods (India) 
Limited - Independent 
Director 

 Avantel Limited -   
Independent Director  

Mr. Laxmi Nivas Jaju 1 0 None None None 
Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli 3 2 3 1  Zen Technologies Limited 

– Independent Director 
 Shilpa Medicare Limited - 

Independent Director 
Mr. Ravindra Vikram 8 11 6 4  GTN Industries Limited 

Name of Director 30.11.2021 
Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 

Present 

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam Present 
Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Present 
Mr. Naveen Nandigam Present 
Mr. Laxmi Nivas Jaju Present 
Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli Present 
Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi N.A 
Mr. Pramod Kasat N.A 
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Mamidipudi - Independent Director 
 Ahlada Engineers 

Limited - Independent 
Director 
 ASM Technologies 

Limited - Independent 
Director-Chairperson 

Mr. Pramod Kasat 2 3 2 0  Advanced Enzyme 
Technologies Limited – 
Independent Director 

 Natural Capsules Limited 
– Independent Director 

 

Notes 1: Number of Directorships in other Companies excludes Directorships in Foreign Companies, but 

includes Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

     2: Board Committee Chairmanships/Memberships in other Companies includes only 

Chairmanships/Memberships of Audit Committees and Stakeholders Relationship Committees of 

Listed / Public Companies only . 

3. Mr. Naveen Nandigam and Mr. Laxmi Nivas Jaju resigned from the Board of Directors of the 

Company effective May 03, 2022. 

 

e. Relationship Between Directors 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi (Managing Director) and Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao 

Chalavadi (Whole Time Director) are brothers and hence relatives as per section 2(77) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. No other director is related to each other in terms of definition “relative” under 

the Act. 

  

f. Number of Shares / Convertible instruments held by Non-executive Directors 

None of the  Non-Executive Directors holds any shares / convertible instruments in the Company. 

 

g. web link for familiarisation programmes imparted to Independent directors 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Familiarization-to-Independent-directors.pdf  

 

h. List of core skill / expertise / competencies / is identified by the board of directors as 

required in the context of its business. 

The Board skills matrix provides a guide as to the skills, knowledge, experience, personal attributes 

and other criteria appropriate for the board of the company. Ours is a skill based board comprising of 

directors who collectively have the skills, knowledge and experience to effectively govern and direct 

the company. The Board is of the opinion that the skill or competence required for the directors in 

relation to the present business of the company includes the following: 

  

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Familiarization-to-Independent-directors.pdf


  Annual Report 2021-22 
 

 

Core skills/expertise/competencies identified 
by the Board of Directors as required in the 
context of its business 

Names of Directors who possess such 
skills/ expertise/competence 

Leadership qualities and in-depth knowledge and 
experience in general management of 
organization 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 
Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam 
Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi 

Exposure to sales and marketing management 
based on understanding of the customers, ads 
and publicity   

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 
Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam 
Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi 
 

Ability to analyse and understand the key 
financial statements, experience in the fields of 
taxation, audit, financial management, banking, 
insurance and investments, treasury, fund raising 
and internal controls 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi 
Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna 
Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 
 

Interpersonal relations, human resources 
management, communication, corporate social 
responsibility including environment and 
sustainability 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi  
Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 
Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam 
 

Technical, professional skills and knowledge 
including legal, governance and regulatory 
aspects 

Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi 
Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 
Mr. Pramod Kasat  
Mr. Sirisha Chintapalli 
 

 

i. In the opinion of the board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing 

Regulations and are independent of the management. 

 

j. detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry 

of his[/her] tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material 

reasons other than those provided. 

 

During the FY 2021-22 under review no director resigned from the office. However, Mr. Naveen 

Nandigam and Mr. Laxmi Nivas Jaju resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company effective 

May 03, 2022. 

 

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The company has in place the audit committee as per the provisions section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Committee was last re-constituted pursuant to a resolution passed by our Board in its meeting held June 
4, 2022.  
 

As on the date of this report, the composition of Audit committee stands as follows: 

Sl.No Name Category 
1 Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi Chairperson 
2 Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna  Member 
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3 Mr. Pramod Kasat Member 
4 Mr. Nagakanaka Durgaprasad Chalavadi Member 

 

The scope and functions of the Audit Committee are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013, Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and its terms of reference include the following:  
 
Powers of Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee shall have powers, including the following: 
 

(a). to investigate any activity within its terms of reference; 
(b). to seek information from any employee; 
(c). to obtain outside legal or other professional advice; 
(d). The audit committee may invite such of the executives, as it considers appropriate (and 
particularly the head of the finance function) to be present at the meetings of the committee, but on 
occasions it may also meet without the presence of any executives of the Issuer. 
(e). to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; and 
(f). such other powers as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and the Listing Regulations. 
 

Role of Audit Committee 
 
The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following: 

 
a) oversight of financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information relating 

to our Company to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

 

b) recommendation for appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remuneration and terms of 

appointment of auditors of our Company and the fixation of the audit fee; 

 

c) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 

auditors; 

 

d) formulation of a policy on related party transactions, which shall include materiality of 

related party transactions; 

 

e) reviewing, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related party transactions entered into 

by our Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals given; 

 

f) examining and reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and 

auditor’s report thereon before submission to our Board for approval, with particular 

reference to: 

 
(i) Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 

included in the Boards report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013; 
 

(ii) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
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(iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
management; 

 

(iv) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings; 

 

(v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements; 

 

(vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and 
 

(vii) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 
 

g) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements 

before submission to our Board for approval; 

 
h) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through 

an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 

purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report 

submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or 

rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to our Board to take up steps in this 

matter; 

 
i) reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 

audit process; 

 
j) approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of our Company with related 

parties and omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by 

our Company, subject to the conditions as may be prescribed.; 

 
k) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

 

l) valuation of undertakings or assets of our Company, wherever it is necessary; 

 

m) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

 

n) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy 

of the internal control systems;  

 

o) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 

reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

 

p) discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon; 
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q) reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to our Board; 

 

r) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope 
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 

s) recommending to our Board the appointment and removal of the external auditor, fixation of 
audit fees and approval for payment for any other services; 

 

t) looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

 

u) reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
 

v) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 
 

w)  overseeing the vigil mechanism established by our Company, with the chairman of the Audit 
Committee directly hearing grievances of victimization of employees and directors, who 
used vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns in appropriate and exceptional cases; 

 
x)  approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the whole-time finance director or 

any other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing 
the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

 
y) reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from / investment by the holding 

company in the subsidiary exceeding ₹ 1,000,000,000 or 10% of the asset size of the 
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing; 

 
z) carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee; 
 
 

(aa). consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, 
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders; and 

 
(bb). carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Audit Committee as 
contained in the Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and when amended from 
time to time  

 
(cc). To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend the terms of 
reference of Audit Committee from time to time; 

 
The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

 
a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
b) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
c) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 
d) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor; 
e) Statement of deviations in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations: 
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i. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) where the Equity Shares are proposed to 
be listed in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations; and 

 
ii. annual statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 
f) review the financial statements, in particular, the investments made by any unlisted subsidiary. 

 

Names of members, Chairperson, Meetings and Attendance 

 

The committee met 4 times during the financial year under review i.e., on 05.07.2021, 03.09.2021, 

25.11.2021 & 10.03.2022 

 

Sl.No Name Designation 05.07.2021 03.09.2021 25.11.2021 10.03.2022 
1 Mr. Naveen 

Nandigam 
Chairperson Present  Present  Present  Absent 

2 Mr. Laxmi Nivas 
Jaju 

Member Present  Present  Absent Present 

3 Mr. Nagakanaka 
Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 

Member Present  Present  Present  Present 

  

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Compliance Officer of the Committee  

 

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The company has in place a Nomination and Remuneration committee in line with the provisions of section 

178 of the companies Act, 2013.  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was last re-constituted 

pursuant to a resolution passed by our Board in its meeting held on June 4, 2022.  

 

As on the date of this report, the composition of Nomination and Remuneration committee stands as follows: 

 

Sl.No Name Category 
1 Mr. Kunisetty Venkata Ramakrishna  Chairperson 
2 Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi  Member 
3 Mr. Pramod Kasat Member 
4 Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli Member 

 

The scope and functions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in accordance with Section 178 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee include the following: 

 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 

and recommend to the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Board of Directors”) a policy 

relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees (“Remuneration 

Policy”). 
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For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 

evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, 

prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person 

recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified 

in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may: 

 

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required; 

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy, should ensure that: 

 

 The level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate directors of the quality required to run our Company successfully; 

 

 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; and 

 

 Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance 

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate 

to the working of the Company and its goals. 

 

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of the performance of the independent directors and the Board; 

3. Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and 

shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual 

directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an 

independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance. 

5. Determining whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis 

of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 

6. To recommend, implement, design, execute, approve schemes of ESPS, ESOP, SAR, Sweat Equity and do all 

other activities as detailed under Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited Employee Share based benefits Scheme 

2022. 

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management; 

8. Carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

as contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and when amended from time to 

time.” 

9.  Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters; 

10. Deciding whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis 

of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 

11. Determining the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including 

pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such directors; 

12. Recommending to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management and other 

staff, as deemed necessary; 
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13. Administering, monitoring and formulating detailed terms and conditions of the employee stock option 

scheme, if any, of the Company; 

14. Reviewing and approving the Company’s compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the 

then current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws; 

15. Performing such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021, if applicable; 

16. Framing suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there is no violation of securities laws, 

as amended from time to time, including: 

a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; and 

b. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade 

Practices Relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, by the trust, the Company and 

its employees, as applicable; and 

 

17. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board or specified/ provided under the 

Companies Act, 2013 to the extent notified and effective, as amended or by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended or by 

any other applicable law or regulatory authority. 

 

18. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 

evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such 

evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The 

person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities 

identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may: 

 

 Use the services of an external agencies, if required; 

 Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 

 Consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

 

Performance evaluation criteria by Independent Director 

 

The criteria for performance evaluation cover the areas such as qualifications, experience, knowledge and 

competency, ability to function as a team, initiative, availability and attendance, commitment, integrity, 

constructive contribution, protection of interest of stakeholders, Independence and independent views. The 

independent directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent directors and the entire board of 

directors, including the chairman, while considering the views of the Executive and Non-Executive directors, 

excluding the director being evaluated  based on the above evaluation criteria laid down by the Nomination 

and Remuneration committee. The Independent directors were highly satisfied with the overall functioning of 

the board and its various committees, which demonstrated a high level of commitment and engagement. They 

also appreciated the exemplary leadership of the chairman of the Board and its committees in upholding and 

following the highest values and standards of corporate governance. Post the review by the Independent 

Directors, the results were shared with the entire board and its respective committees. The Board expressed 

its satisfaction with the evaluation results, which reflects very high degree of engagement of the board and its 
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committees with the management. Based on the outcome of the evaluation and assessment cum feedback of 

the directors, the board and the management have agreed on various action points, which will be 

implemented during the ensuing years. 

 

Number of members, Chairperson, meetings and attendance 

The Committee met 4 times during the financial year under review i.e., on 12.04.2021, 03.09.2021,  

18.02.2022 & 10.03.2022 

 

Sl.No Name Designation 12.04.2021 03.09.2021 18.02.2022 10.03.2022 
1 Mr. 

Naveen 
Nandigam 

Chairperson Present  Present  Absent Present  

2 Mr. Laxmi 
Nivas Jaju 

Member Present  Present  Present  Present  

3 Ms. Sirisha 
Chintapalli 

Member Present  Present  Present  Present  

 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Compliance Officer of the Committee. 

 

Details of remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 

 

i. Executive Directors      Rs. In million 

Name of the Director Salary Other 
Benefits 

Company’s 
contributio
n to PF 

Commissio
n 

Performanc
e linked 
incentive  

Total 
Remun
eration 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga 
Prasad Chalvadi 

24.37 - - - - 24.37 

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas 
Annam 

10.49 - - - - 10.49 

Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka 
Durgarao Chalavadi 

3.60 - - - - 3.60 

 

Payment of remuneration to the Executive / Whole Time Directors of the company is governed by the terms 

and conditions of their appointment as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration committee and 

approved by the Board and Shareholders. 

 

Details of shares held by Managing Director & Executive Directors in the Company as on date of this Report 

Name of the Director Designation Shareholding  
(Face value Rs.2 each ) 

Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 

Managing Director 5,69,75,505 equity shares  

Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam Whole Time Director 1,50,96,975 equity shares 
Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao 
Chalavadi 

Whole Time Director 64,35,250 equity shares 

 

 

6. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
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The company has in place a stakeholders relationship committee in line with the provisions of the section 178 

(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was re-constituted pursuant to a 

resolution passed by our Board in its meeting held on May 3, 2022. 

 

As on the date of this report, the composition of stakeholders relationship committee stands as follows: 

Sl.No Name Category 
1 Ms. Sirisha Chintapalli Independent Director 

(Chairperson) 
2 Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Managing Director (Member) 
3 Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam Whole Time Director (Member) 
 

The scope and functions of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are in accordance with Section 178 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee include the following: 

 

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue 

of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc; 

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 

being rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent; and 

4. Considering and specifically looking into various aspects of interest of shareholders, debenture 

holders and other security holders; 

5. Investigating complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of 

shares, debentures or any other securities; 

6. Giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, dematerialisation of shares and 

rematerialisation of shares, split and issue of duplicate/consolidated share certificates, compliance 

with all the requirements related to shares, debentures and other securities from time to time; 

7. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 

notices by the shareholders of the Company. 

8. Carrying out such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or 

specified/provided under the Companies Act or SEBI Listing Regulations, or by any other regulatory 

authority. 

9. To approve, register, refuse to register transfer or transmission of shares and other securities; 

10. To sub-divide, consolidate and or replace any share or other securities certificate(s) of the Company; 

11. Allotment and listing of shares; 

12. To authorise affixation of common seal of the Company; 

13. To issue duplicate share or other security(ies) certificate(s) in lieu of the original share/security(ies) 

certificate(s) of the Company; 

14. To approve the transmission of shares or other securities arising as a result of death of the sole/any 

joint shareholder; 

15. Carrying out any other functions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 and/or equity listing 

agreements (if applicable), as and when amended from time to time; and 

16. To further delegate all or any of the power to any other employee(s), officer(s), representative(s), 

consultant(s), professional(s), or agent(s). 
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Number of members, Chairperson, Meetings and Attendance 

The committee met 2 time during the Financial year under review, i.e.; 25.11.2021 & 18.02.2022 

Name Designation 25.11.2021 18.02.2022 
Mr. Laxmi Nivas Jaju Chairperson  Absent Present 
Mr. Naveen Nandigam Member  Present Absent 
Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 

Member Present Present 

 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Compliance Officer of the Committee. 

 

No. of shareholders complaints 
received during the FY  

Nil  

No. of complaints not solved to the 
satisfaction of the shareholders  

Nil  

No. of pending complaints Nil  
  

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in line with the provisions of 

section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 to recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the 

activities prescribed as per the approved policy and to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility policy of 

the company from time to time. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was re-constituted pursuant 

to a resolution passed by our Board on May 3, 2022. 

 

As on the date of this report, the composition of Corporate Social Responsibility committee stands as follows: 

Sl.No Name Category 

1 Mr. Ravindra Vikram Mamidipudi Independent Director 
(Chairperson) 

2 Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 

Managing Director (Member) 

3 Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam Whole Time Director (Member) 

 
The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of our Company are as per Section 

135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules thereunder, including: 

 

i. formulate and recommend to the Board, a “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” which shall 

indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies 

Act, 2013; 

ii. Support the economically backward and children in the need of health and education; 

iii. Support the humanity during the natural calamities, donation of clothes to flood relief camps; 

iv. Collaborate in the initiatives of other NGOs for the cause of fostering the needy children health care; 

v. Support the initiatives that would help the public at large in understanding the health hazards; 

vi. Conduct the workshops and create awareness about conservation of natural resources; 

vii. Promote the activities, which would support the welfare and well-being of the Weavers Community; 
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viii. Eradicating extreme hunger and poverty; 

ix. Infrastructure Development (village roads, culverts, bus shelters, solar lighting etc); 

x. Ensuring environmental sustainability; 

xi. Drinking water / Sanitation; 

xii. Healthcare; 

xiii. Community Development; 

xiv. Education and vocational training; 

xv. Skill Development; 

xvi. Child care and nutrition. 

(b). review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause 

(a); 

(c). review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause 

(a), 

amount to be at least 2% of the average net profit of the Company in the three immediately preceding 

financial years or where the Company has not completed the period of three financial years since its 

incorporation, during such immediately preceding financial years, and the distribution of the same to 

various corporate social responsibility programs undertaken by the Company; 

(d). delegate responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise proper execution of all 

delegated responsibilities; 

(e). review and monitor the implementation of corporate social responsibility programmes and issuing 

necessary directions as required for proper implementation and timely completion of corporate social 

responsibility programmes; 

(f). The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual 

action plan in pursuance of its corporate social responsibility policy, which shall include the following: 

(i) the list of corporate social responsibility projects or programmes that are approved to be 

undertaken in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act; 

(ii) the manner of execution of such projects or programmes as specified in the rules notified under 

the Companies Act; 

(iii) the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or 

programmes; 

(iv) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; and 

(v) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the Company; and 

(g) monitor the corporate social responsibility policy of the Company and its implementation from time to 

time; and 

(h) any other matter as the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee may deem appropriate after approval 

of the Board or as may be directed by the Board from time to time and/or as may be required under 

applicable law, as and when amended from time to time. 

 

The committee met 2 time during the Financial year under review, i.e.; 12.04.2021 & 25.11.2021  

 

Sl.No Name Designation 12.04.2021 25.11.2021 
1 Mr. Naveen Nandigam Chairperson  Present  Present 
2 Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad 

Chalavadi 
Member  Present Present 

3 Mr. Laxminivas Jaju Member Present Absent 
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The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Compliance Officer of the Committee. 

 

CSR policy is available on the Company website: https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CSR-

Policy.pdf  

8. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

The Risk Management Committee was constituted pursuant to a resolution passed by our Board in its 

meeting held on May 3, 2022. 

 

The Company has in place a Risk Management Committee and this committee consists of 5 members are as 

follows: 

 

Sl.No Name  Category 
1 Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Managing Director (Chairperson) 
2 Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi Whole Time Director (Member) 
3 Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam Whole Time Director (Member) 
4 Mr. Mamidipudi Ravindra Vikram Independent Director (Member) 
5 Mr. KVLN Sarma Chief Financial Officer (Member) 
 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Compliance Officer of the Committee. 

 

The scope and function of the Risk Management Committee are in accordance with Regulation 21 of the 

Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:  

 

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: 

 

i. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in 

particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, environmental 

social and governance related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may 

be determined by the Committee. 

ii. Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified 

risk 

iii. Business continuity plan. 

 

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate 

risks associated with the business of the Company; 

3. To co-ordinate its activities with other committees, in instances where there is any overlap with 

activities of such committees, as per framework laid down by the board of directors; 

4. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the 

adequacy of risk management systems; 

5. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by 

considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 

6. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, 

recommendations and actions to be taken; 

7. To approve major decisions affecting the risk profile or exposure and give appropriate directions 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CSR-Policy.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CSR-Policy.pdf
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8. To consider the effectiveness of decision-making process in crisis and emergency situations; 

9. To balance risks and opportunities; 

10. To generally, assist the Board in the execution of its responsibility for the governance of risk 

11. To seek information from any employee, obtain outside legal or other professional advice and secure 

attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; 

12. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be 

subject to review by the Risk Management Committee and 

13. Any other similar or other functions as may be laid down by Board from time to time and/or as may 

be required under applicable law, as and when amended from time to time, including the SEBI Listing 

regulations. 

 

Note: Since the Committee was constituted subsequent to close of the FY 2021-22, disclosure pertaining to 

Meetings held / attendance thereat during the FY 2021-22 does not arise and hence not provided. 

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT & IPO COMMITTEE 

 

The company has in place an Executive Management & IPO committee. During the year the committee met 

once, i.e., on 05.07.2021 and the details are as follows: 

 

Sl.No Name Designation 05.07.2021 
1 Mr. Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi Chairperson Present 
2 Mr. Kalyan Srinivas Annam Member Present 
3 Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalvadi Member Present 
 

After the closure of FY 2021-22, in view of the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO), the Board designated the 

then existing Executive Management committee as “Executive Management & IPO Committee” which, inter 

alia, shall be responsible for various matters related to IPO.  

 

9. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 

The meeting of the Independent directors during the year 2021-22 was held in accordance with the 

requirements of section 149 & Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year, the independent 

directors met once, i.e., on April 12, 2021 and all the independent directors attended the meeting. 

The detail of Familiarization program is available on the company’s website https://sskl.co.in/wp-

content/uploads/2022/07/Familiarization-to-Independent-directors.pdf. 

 

V. Remuneration of Directors 
 

a) all pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the Company  
 

The Company neither has any pecuniary relationship (except Sitting Fee) nor has entered into any 

transaction(s) with any of its non-executive directors.  

 

b) Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors  
 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Familiarization-to-Independent-directors.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Familiarization-to-Independent-directors.pdf
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The remuneration policy describing the criteria of making payment to non-executive directors may 

be accessed at   https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Remuneration-Policy.pdf  

 

c) Disclosures with respect to remuneration  
 

Information to be disclosed in the annual report as per the provisions of Sec 197 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 – N.A (since the Company is yet to be listed) 

 

Further, information as required under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 is hereunder: 

 

i. All elements of remuneration package of individual directors summarized under major groups, 
such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc for the FY 2021-22: 

Rs.in lacs  

Sl. 
No 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount 

  Mr. 
Nagakanaka 
Durga Prasad 
Chalavadi 

Mr. Kalyan 
Srinivas 
Annam 

Mr. Doodeswara 
Kanaka Durgarao 

 

1 Gross salary     
A Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

242.5 103.7 34.8 381 

B Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

1.2 1.2 1.2 3.6 

C Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - - 

2 Stock Option - - - - 
3 Sweat Equity - - - - 
4 Commission - - - - 
 - as % of profit     
 - others     
5 Others - - - - 
 Total 243.7 104.9 36.00 384.6 
 Ceiling as per the 

Act 
405.7 405.7 405.7 811.3 

 

The Board, in consultation with its Nomination and Remuneration Committee adopts generally accepted 

criteria for determining remuneration to its directors.  

There are no performance linked incentives or bonus to any of its directors. 

Moreover, no service contracts were entered into by the Company, hence, notice period and severance 

fees are not applicable.  

Stock option details, if any including issue at a discount as well as the period over which accrued and over 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Remuneration-Policy.pdf
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which exercisable: The Company has not issued any stock options during the FY 2021-22. 

 

10. General Body Meetings 

 

AGM Financial 
Year 
Ended 

Date & Time Venue Special 
Resolution 
passed 

13th  March 31, 
2021 

30th November 2021 
10:30 AM 

6-3-790/8, Flat no:1, Bathina 
Apartments, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, 
Telangana 500016 

Nil 

12th  March 31, 
2020 

31st December, 2020 
10:00 AM 

6-3-790/8, Flat no:1, Bathina 
Apartments, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, 
Telangana 500016 

Nil 

11th  March 31, 
2019 

30th September, 2019 
11:00 AM 

6-3-790/8, Flat no:1, Bathina 
Apartments, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, 
Telangana 500016 

Nil 

 

During the financial year under review, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot. Therefore providing 

details of person who conducted the Postal Ballot exercise does not arise. Also, no special resolution is being 

proposed through Postal Ballot as on the date of notice calling the Annual General Meeting. The members of 

the Company will be intimated appropriately as and when the Postal Ballot need arises.  

 

Procedure for postal ballot 
 

The Postal ballot will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Sec 110 of The Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 22 of The Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44  of 

SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 

 

Information about Directors seeking appointment / Reappointment 

 

Mr. Doodeswara Kanaka Durgarao Chalavadi is retiring by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-

appointment and his details are given in the Notice.  

 

Means Of Communication 

 

As of date, ours is a closely held Company, where public as such are not holding any shares in the Company. 

Hence, the need of mass communication did not arise till date. However, once the Company gets listed on the 

Stock Exchanges, it shall adopt and follow the requisite means of communication in order to maintain timely, 

purposeful and efficient communication with its shareholders at large.  

 

However, the website of our Company, i.e., www.sskl.co.in may be accessed in order to obtain any 

information about the Company, its Board of Directors, operations etc.  

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

a. Annual General Meeting for the FY 2021-22 

Date & Time – 30th September, 2022, 10:30 AM 

http://www.sskl.co.in/
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Venue: 6-3-790/8, Flat no:1, Bathina Apartments, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana 500016 

 

b. Financial Year (2021-2022) 
 

The Financial year under review is 2021-2022 (01st April, 2021 to 31st March,2022) 

 

c. Dividend payment date: Within 30 days from the date of Annual General Meeting (if declared) 

Unclaimed Dividend – There were no unclaimed dividend in the past years. 

Transfer of unclaimed dividend and shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

There were no unclaimed dividend in the past years; hence no shares were transferred to Investor 

Education and Protection Fund. 

 

d. Listing on Stock Exchanges & Stock Code 

Your company proposes to access capital markets by way of an Initial Public offer and get its shares 

listed on the Stock Exchanges.  

 

The Company has paid custodial fees for the year 2022-23 to National Securities Depository 

Limited[NSDL] and Central Depository Services (India)Limited [CDSL] on the basis of number of 

beneficial accounts maintained by them as on 31st March, 2022.  

 

e. Stock Code  
 

NA.  

 

f. Stock market price data and Performance in comparison to BSE Sensex/Nifty 50 for the year 

2021-22 

 

N.A. 

 

g. Since the shares / securities of the Company are not listed, any suspension thereof does not 

arise.  

 

h. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 

Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, 

Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, 

Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400093 

Telephone: 022 62638200 

investor@bigshareonline.com 

Website: www.bigshareonline.com 

 

i. Share Transfer System 

 

The Company engages the services of M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited, Mumbai in case of any 

physical share transfers / transmission, etc.,.  Share transfers, whether physical or demat are carried out 

http://www.bigshareonline.com/
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in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The Company has appointed M/s. Bigshare 

Services Private Limited, Mumbai to act as Registrar to the Issue.  

 

j. Shareholding pattern and Distribution of shares as on March 31, 2022 

Category Shareholders Shares Face value-Rs.10/- 
Numbers % of 

Shareholders 
Numbers % of Shares 

Upto   -  5000 11 100.00 - - 
50001 - 10000 - - - - 
10001 – 20000 - - - - 
20001 – 30000 - - - - 
30001 - 40000 - - - - 
40001 – 50000 - - - - 
50001 – 100000 - - - - 
100001 and 
above 

- - 2,40,64,588 100.00 

Total 11 100.00 2,40,64,588 100.00 
 

 

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2022 

Sl.No Category Total No of Shares  
(Face Value Rs.10) 

Total Percentage as a 
% of Total Share 
Capital 

1 Promoter / Promoter Group 2,40,64,588 100.00 
2 Mutual Funds / UTI - - 
3 Financial Institutions / Banks - - 
4 Insurance Companies - - 
5 Central / State Government - - 
6 Bodies Corporate - - 
7 Investor Education and Protection Authority - - 
8 Indian Public - - 
9 Resident Individual (HUF) - - 
10 NRI / Foreign National / OCB - - 
11 NBFCs registered with RBI - - 
12 Unclaimed Shares Account - - 
 Total 2,40,64,588 100.00 

 

Note : Consequent upon subdivision, the face value of shares stands at Rs.2 per share. Further, taking 

into consideration the said sub-division and allotment of 60,16,145 equity shares of face value Rs.2 /- to 

SSKL Employees trust, total number of issued / paid up shares stands at 12,63,39,085 equity shares of 

Rs.2 each. 

 

k. Dematerialization of shares & liquidity  

As on March 31, 2022 and further also as on date of this Report, the entire share capital of the company 

is held in dematerialization mode. The entire shareholding of Promoters and Promoter Group is in 

dematerialization form. 
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l. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely 

impact on equity 

The Company has not issued any GDRs, ADRs, Warrants or any other convertible instruments. 

 

m. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities  

Nil / N.A 

 

n. Plant locations:  

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence does not operate / maintain 

any factory or plant as such. The Company carries out its operations through its stores / godowns, 

the details of which may be obtained from the website of the Company, www.sskl.co.in.  

o. Investor’s Correspondence 

All queries of Investor regarding our Company’s shares in physical / Demat form may be sent to the 

Company Secretary of the Company, ie. secretarial@sskl.co.in Shareholders holding shares in electronic 

mode should address all correspondence to their respective depositories. 

 

p. Compliance officer 

Mr. Matte Koti Bhaskara Teja 

Company Secretary & Compliance officer 

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited 

6-3-790/8, Flat no:1, Bathina Apartments, 

Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana 500016 

Ph: 040 66566555 

Email: secretarial@sskl.co.in 

 

q. Credit Rating 

During the year under review, “A-” rating has been assigned to the Company by CARE and India Rating. 

 

12. Unclaimed Suspense Account 

The company does not have any unclaimed suspense account 

 

13. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 

a. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict 

with the interests of listed entity at large 

 

All the transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during 

the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis  

 

Transactions with related parties are disclosed at Note No: 45 of the financial statements in the Annual 

Report. 

 

We have formulated a policy on “materiality of related party transactions” and the process of dealing 

with such transaction, which are in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

mailto:secretarial@sskl.co.in
mailto:secretarial@sskl.co.in
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The same has been uploaded on the website of the company https://sskl.co.in/wp-

content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-On-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf  

 

b. Details of non-compliances by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by 

the stock exchanges /SEBI/ statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during 

the last three years. 

Nil and N.A (since the Company is not listed on any Stock Exchanges)  

 

c. The company has in place a Vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy in terms of section 177(9) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 which enables stakeholders, including individual employees to freely 

communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical practices. No personnel has been denied access to 

the Audit committee to lodge their grievances. No compliant has been received by the committee during 

the year. The vigil mechanism is also available on the company’s website https://sskl.co.in/wp-

content/uploads/2022/07/Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.pdf  

 

d.    Details of compliance of Mandatory and adoption of Non- Mandatory Requirements 

 

The Company is in the process of undertaking an IPO and get its shares listed on the Stock Exchanges.  In 

view of this, it has complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable and feasible as on date. The 

Company has also adopted the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II of the 

Regulations and the same may be referred at point no. 16  hereunder. 

 

e.    Policy for determining material subsidiaries may be accessed on our website  
 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-on-material-subsidiary.pdf 

 

 

f.    Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions 
 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-On-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf 

 

g.     Recommendation of the committees of Board 

 

There were no such instances during the financial year 2021-22, wherein the board had not accepted 

the recommendation made by any committees of the board. 

 

h.   Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging Risk – NA 
 

      i. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions    placement as 
specified under Regulation 32 (7A) – NA 

 

 
j. Certificate from a Company Secretary of the Company that none of the directors on the board of the 
company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by 
the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority was placed before the Board of 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-On-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-On-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-on-material-subsidiary.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Policy-On-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
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Directors. 
 

k. Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors  
 

      Rs. In lacs  

Auditors Sagar & Associates 
Audit Fee 18.75 
Tax matters 6.25 
Certification Fee - 
Out of Pocket expenses - 
Total 25.00 
 

l. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013:  

 

The Board has constituted Internal Complaints Committee in accordance with the provisions of The 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

("POSH Act"). This Committee has been constituted to specifically provide a safe, secure and 

enabling environment, free from sexual harassment to every  woman. 

 

 Composition & Attendance in Meetings: 

 

 The Committee met 2 times on 12.04.2021 and 10.03.2022 during the year under review 

 

Name  Designation  Meetings held  Meeting entitled 
to attend  

Attended  

Ms. S. Sunanda Presiding 
Officer 

2 2 2 

Mr. D. Srinivas Prasad Member 2 2 2 

Mr. B. Chakradhar  Member 2 2 2 

Ms. Sabita Borra Member 2 2 2 

 

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Internal Complaints Committee. 

 

Sl. No Particulars  
A Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil 
B Number of complaints disposed of during the financial 

year 
Nil 

C Number of complaints pending as on end of the 
financial year 

Nil 

 

 
 

15. Non- compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report, with reasons thereof: 
 

All the corporate governance requirements are complied with, to the extent applicable and feasible in the 

context of the Company. 
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16. The extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have been 
adopted: 

 

Discretionary Requirements: 
 

Your Company has adopted / complied with the discretionary requirements specified in Part E of 

Schedule II as detailed below: 

 

i.   The Board: 

Maintenance of Office to the Non-executive Chairperson at the Company’s expense: The Non-

executive Chairperson, being resident of the same city as  of the Company, visits the 

Company’s Registered Office / stores as and when deemed necessary. Hence, no separate 

office as such is required to be maintained.   

ii.   Shareholders’ rights:  

All the quarterly financial results shall be placed on the Company’s Website, www.sskl.co.in, 

apart from publishing the same in the Newspapers along and submission to Stock Exchanges, 

subsequent upon Listing. 

iii.  Modified opinion(s) in audit report:  

There are no modified opinions in the Audit Reports.  

 

iv. Separate Posts of Chairman and the Managing Director or the CEO:  

Mr. M R Vikram is the Non-executive Chairman of the Company, whereas Mr.  Mr. 

Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi is the Managing Director of the Company  

 

v. Reporting of Internal Auditor: 

The Internal auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee directly.  

 

17. The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulations 17 

to 27 and Regulation 46 (2) (b) to (i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. The details are as follows: 

 

Regulation Particulars of regulations Compliance status 

(Yes/No) 

17 Board of Directors  Yes 

18 Audit committee  Yes 

19 Nomination and Remuneration 

committee  

Yes 

20 Stakeholders Relationship committee  Yes 

21 Risk Management committee  Yes 

22 Vigil mechanism  Yes 

23 Related party transactions  Yes 

24 Corporate Governance requirements 

with respect to Subsidiary of the 

Company  

NA 

http://www.sskl.co.in/
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25 Obligations with respect to Independent 

directors  

Yes 

26 Obligation with respect to Directors and 

Senior Management  

Yes 

27 Other Corporate Governance 

requirements 

Yes/ Will be complied  

46(2) (b) to 

(i)  

 Website  Yes 

 

 

 

18. Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account: N.A 

 

19. Prevention of Insider Trading 

 

In accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the 

Company has instituted a comprehensive code of conduct for prohibition of insider trading in the 

Company’s shares. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the 

purchase or sale of Company’s shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of 

unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the 

Trading Window is closed. However, the same will be brought into force upon listing of shares on Stock 

Exchanges. The said code of conduct may be accessed at https://sskl.co.in/wp-

content/uploads/2022/07/Code-of-Insider-Trading.pdf  

 

20. Code of Conduct: 

 

In compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board has laid down a code of conduct for 

all Board members and Senior Management of the Company and it is posted on the website of the Company 

at the link https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Code-of-Conduct.pdf 

 

21. Auditors Certificate on Corporate Governance 

 

The Company has obtained certificate from Ms. B. Aruna, partner Sagar & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants regarding compliance with the provisions relating to Corporate Governance laid down in Part 

E of schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. This 

certificate is annexed to the Director’s Report and will be sent to the stock exchanges, along with the Annual 

Reports to be filed by the Company. 

 

22. MD and CFO Certification 

 

The MD and CFO have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other matters as 

required under regulation 17(8), read with Part-B of schedule II to the SEBI (Listing Obligations And 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 

https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Code-of-Insider-Trading.pdf
https://sskl.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Code-of-Insider-Trading.pdf
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MD & CFO Certification 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

The Board of Directors  

SAI SILKS (KALAMANDIR) LIMITED 

Hyderabad. 

 
We, Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi, Managing Director and KVLN Sarma, Chief Financial Officer of Sai 
Silks (Kalamandir) Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that : 
 
A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of our Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 
I. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 
 
II. These statements together present a true and fair view of our Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 
B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by our Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of our Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and that we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal controls, if any. 
 
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 
 
I. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 
II. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements; and 
 
III. Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the entity’s internal control system over 
financial reporting. 
         For and on behalf of the Board 
 
 
      Sd/-       Sd/- 
      Nagakanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi  KVLN Sarma 
     Managing Director   Chief Financial Officer 
     DIN:  01929166 
Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 19.09.2022 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
TO 
THE MEMBERS 
SAI SILKS (KALAMANDIR) LIMITED. 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SAI SILKS (KALAMANDIR) 
LIMITED (“the Company”), for the year ended 31st March, 2022, as per the relevant provisions of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
regulations)” as referred to in Regulation 15(2) of the Listing regulations. 
 
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of Management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 
mentioned Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
Note :  
 
The Company, as on date of this Certificate is an unlisted Company, proposes to list its shares on the Stock 
Exchanges upon completion of its IPO, which is under process. In view of the said, this Certificate certifying the 
compliance of provisions related to Corporate Governance as laid in Listing Regulations be read and inferred 
accordingly.  
 

For Sagar & Associates 
Chartered Accountants  

 
 

Sd/- 
B. Aruna 
Partner 

M. No. 216454 
UDIN: 22216454ANIMHK7202 

 
Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 19th September, 2022 
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